
           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  
  

  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  tthhee  WWhhoollee  ––  66::3300  pp..mm..    

RReegguullaarr  CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  MMeeeettiinngg  ––  77::0000  pp..mm..  
 

  

  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEMMBBEERRSS              MMAAYYOORR 
Richard Holm -Alt. Dep. Mayor Pro Tem    488-1776 Bryce Ward – 488-7314  

Sharron Hunter-Mayor Pro Tem  488-4282                 

Thomas McGhee             455-0010 

Preston Smith     488-8824   

          CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK 

                Kathy Weber, MMC  488-8583   

 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

  

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag   
National Anthem sung by NPMS – Shahiba Bhattarai, Lindsay Moisan, Ashley Roberts, Brittany Roberts 

 

3. Invocation   
  

4. Approval of the Agenda 

 

5. Approval of the Minutes  

  

6. Communications from the Mayor 

 

 United Way presentation by Karen Gardner 

 Reorganization of the City Council 

 

CCIITTYY  OOFF  NNOORRTTHH  PPOOLLEE  

AAllaasskkaa  
 

 

RREEGGUULLAARR  CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEEETTIINNGG  

MMoonnddaayy,,  NNoovveemmbbeerr  44,,  22001133  
 

 

  

  

  

  



7.      Council Member Questions of the Mayor 

 

8.      Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 

         Clerk  

   

9.      Ongoing Projects Report 
 

10.    Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

11.    Old Business 

 

12.   New Business 

a. Tuition Reimbursement for Officer Emily Gibson in the amount of $495 

b. Appeal of water bill for September & October 2013 by James Vogel 

c. Acceptance of AHSO Grant 154AL-14-01(C) in the amount of $119,326.39 

d. Award of design services for heating and cooling system in the Police Department to PDC, 

Inc. 

e. Award of Bi-Directional Amplifier (BDA) & Distributed Antenna (DAS) bid to Procomm 

and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the Agreement for Professional Services. 

f. Council approval of online surplus sale items 

g. Ordinance 13-14, An Ordinance Establishing the 2014 Budget and Levying the Mill Rate 

h. Resolution 13-17, A Resolution of the North Pole City Council, rescheduling the November 

18, 2013 council meeting to November 25, 2013 due to the AML Conference in Anchorage, 

Alaska. 

 

13.  Executive Session 

a.  To Discuss personnel issues of the Police Department. 

 

14.  Council Comments 

 

15.    Adjournment 

 

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing impaired 

individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours notice to arrange for this service.  All such requests are 

subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are 

available for listening or duplication at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday 

through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or can be purchased for $5.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is 

located in City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.  



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

1 
October 21, 2013 

 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, October 21, 2013 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, October 21, 2013 to order at 

7:07 p.m. 

 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Mr. Holm       

Ms. Hunter           

Mr. McGhee       

Mr. Smith         

Mayor Ward  

     

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Led by Mayor Ward 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Thomas McGhee 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mr. Holm moved to Approve the Agenda of October 21, 2013 

 

Seconded by Mr. Smith 

 

Discussion  

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to consent the following items under New Business as follows: 

a.   Award of the 2014 Heating Fuel Bid 

b.  Approval for Mayor Ward to File Declaration of Candidacy and Financial Commitment 

for Election to The 2014 Alaska Municipal League Board of Directors, District 7. 

c.   Request for City Clerk to Attend the AAMC Conference from November 17 – 19 in 

Anchorage, Alaska  

e. Intergovernmental Agreement for Roles and Responsibilities Under Alaska Pollutant  

      Discharge Elimination System (APDES) Municipal Storm Water Permit No. AKS- 

      053406 

       f. Approval of Resolution 13-16, A Resolution of the North Pole City Council Designating  

             City Officials Authorization to Sign on City of North Pole Accounts 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

2 
October 21, 2013 

 

 

Seconded by Mr. Holm 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

On the Amendment 

 

PASSED 

YES – 5 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0  

 

On the main motion as amended 

 

PASSED 

YES – 5 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. Holm moved to Approve the minutes of September 16, 2013 

 

Seconded by Mr. McGhee 

 

Discussion   

None 

 

PASSED 

YES – 5 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

 

 The City of North Pole did receive a settlement from GVEA for the back taxes.  The amount was 

slightly over $158,000.  

 

 This week is the Week of AFN and The City would like to welcome all of the participants to the 

interior and to North Pole.   

 

 Thank you to Council member Smith and Hunter for participating in the AIDEA energy update in 

the Fairbanks North Star Borough Chambers.   

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

3 
October 21, 2013 

 I attended the FMATS meeting last week and helped move an action that would move toward 

consolidation of the MOU’s that created the organization, the effort is to make the organizational 

structure easier to follow and understand.   

 

 I was also able to attend the State Rail Steering Committee meeting.  This group is responsible 

for developing a statewide rail plan and creating the mechanism to work on accomplishing the 

goals set forth.   

 

 I also have been faithfully attending the Over the Coffee Cup on KJNP in North Pole every 

Saturday to help keep our residents informed on the happenings in the city.   

 

 The North Pole City budget will be made public on the 28
th
 of October.   

 

 Council is strongly encouraged to mark your calendar to attend the “Council orientation on 

November 2
nd

” This orientation will go over council meeting procedure, reading financials and 

introductions to department staff and facilities as well as much more.   

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

Mr. Smith asked about the sirens from Flint Hills Refinery this past weekend. 

 

Mayor Ward said that there was a fire and our fire department responded. 

 

Mr. Holm asked about where the monies from GVEA would be going. 

 

Mayor Ward stated that a portion would go to sales tax for 2013 and the other would go into the 

fund balance.     

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler  

Building Department 

 Paperwork submitted by contractor for residential renovation of burnt structure on West 7
th

 

 New application will push construction permits in North Pole to over $11.7 million 

 

Public Works 

 Made minor modifications to bus shelter at mall 

 Made modifications as bridge until Borough upgrades shelter 

 Provide bus patrons with protection from weather and elevate out of spring flooding 

 Heating fuel contract before Council this evening 

 Planning to install Christmas light displays in roundabouts this week 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

4 
October 21, 2013 

Utility Department 

 Major development is the wastewater discharge channel in Tanana River has run dry 

 Noticed loss of flow on October 8 when went to take laboratory samples 

 Flow in the channel is now only treated wastewater 

 Technically, Utility is in violation of its discharge permit because lack a mixing 

zone 

 Even with no river flow, the discharge water is meeting its other permit 

requirements 

 ADEC was notified within 24 hours after discovery of violation (within statutory 

requirement) 

 ADEC will conduct a site inspection on Tuesday, October 22 

 Wastewater engineering study estimated it would cost approximately $2 million 

to replace/extend discharge main 

 

Natural Gas Utility Board 

 Regulatory Commission of Alaska (RCA) expected to make a ruling in December on 

granting a service area  

 IGU plans to proceed with identifying a director and contractor to move forward with laying 

the ground work for a public utility if RCA grants the service area to IGU 

 

 

Police Department, Chief Dutra 

 

 Congratulations to the new council members.  We look forward to working with you. 

  As most of you may have heard we are doing our annual Glowstock.  Just a reminder we 

will be handing them out on Halloween. 

 Prescription Drug take back is this Saturday 10 am 2 pm.  Please spread the word we 

would like to get a larger turn in than before. 

 November 7
th

 CTC graduation for Officer Bruce Milne.  This should be our last hopefully 

for some time.   

 Our Officers assisted with an AOA this weekend.  Shots fired after they went to the 

door.  They are all ok just want to say thank you to Officer Gore for doing a good job. 

 New uniforms seem to have been well accepted.   

 Staffing – Still have 2 out on light duty and one in academy.  CTC graduation will give 

us one more back in lineup. 

 Revenue sharing lowered by 10% due to sequestration. 

 

 

Fire Department, Chief Lane 

 Congrats to new council members and good luck to Mr. Holm. 

 3 went down to the pre-built for the new platform truck.  This is funded through state 

grant from legislature.  May have new platform truck by July 2014. 

 New ambulance in January. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

5 
October 21, 2013 

 New EMS jackets for the department from state legislative grant. 

 Working on budget and working hard on Alaska Shield 2014.  Same response but 

scenario will change and he will keep everyone updated.  NIMS testing is important and 

he will be contacting council members. 

 829 people came through and planning for next year. 

 Fire prevention month is October.  Fireman’s Ball is held this month and give out yearly 

awards.  This year Chad Heinekin received Captain of the Year for 2013. 

 

Mr. McGhee asked if the NPFD has ever thought of doing a Halloween truck like the Christmas 

lighting truck. 

 

Mr. Lane said he would entertain the idea and would like to meet with Mr. McGhee. 

 

Mr. Smith asked about the sirens yesterday at Flint Hills. 

 

Mr. Lane said that once a month Flint Hills tests their siren.  However, yesterday they did have a 

fire and the NPFD responded.  Luckily it was in a room that had fire walls but it did not escape 

into any other room.  It did do significant damage to the room.  

 

Ms. Hunter asked about the time of response between the siren at Flint Hills and the NPFD 

response.   

 

Mr. Lane stated that Flint Hills has their own fire department and they are not connected to 

dispatch.  Someone has to physically call dispatch to have NPFD respond.  

 

Ms. Hunter asked about the siren and if it was so loud as to inform the public that there is a 

problem. 

 

Mr. Lane stated that the siren was loud because it needed to warn the people that are working in 

loud areas in the refinery to evacuate.  

 

Mr. Smith asked about “Change your clock, change your battery” program. 

 

Mr. Lane said they lost their fire education person.  With the government being down, they have 

not been able to get funds to do that program. 

 

Accountant, Lisa Vaughn 

You have the September financials: 

 We closed out the bank account that held FRR Industrial monies, from the sewer bills and  

moved the monies, of $249,000 into Central Treasury.  On the books, the monies were 

moved from Fund 2 to Fund 27. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

6 
October 21, 2013 

 

  As of the end of September: 

 Sales Tax is $25,433 over last year at this time 

 Alcohol Tax is $4,282 behind 

 Tobacco Tax is $5,940 ahead 

For a total of $35,655 over last year. 

However, Bed Tax is down by $20,864 over last year.  From what I have heard, the Hotel just 

hasn’t had the same level of business this year that they have had in the past. 

 

 We received our check from GVEA for $158,285.23.  Of this amount, $10,766.92 will be 

posted to current year sales tax; the remainder will be booked to miscellaneous revenue.  

The correction of this problem should result in increasing our sales tax by approximately 

$20,000 per year.   

 

 Last week I attended the Caselle conference, along with Kathy and Tricia.  A couple of 

the classes to note were on payroll and balancing the subsystems to the general ledger 

along with a class on the system management.  I would like to say that I spoke to the 

accounting tech from Soldotna.  They are going to start their on-line payments with 

Express Bill Pay…she has spent a lot of time talking to  Tricia and wanted me to know 

how much they appreciate the help that Tricia has given them.   

 

 

Borough Representative, Mayor Ward 

 There was nothing that concerned the City of North Pole. 

 

 

City Clerk    
 

 I attended the Caselle Conference last week in Henderson, Nevada and came back with 

interesting data on a document management, payroll, payroll codes, system management, IT 

compliance and Human Resources.  I will be talking more with Caselle later in the week.  This is 

covered by the grant from the state legislature and I will be actively pursuing the best program 

that the City can get.  More vendors will be at the AAMC Conference in November and I hope to 

have something put together by the end of the year.   

 

 Code Book Publishing started the legal review and recodification.  They have been sending me 

different fonts to choose from and various layouts.  I have decided to stay with the current layout 

as it is neat and easy to read. 

 

  Request that all council members have professional portraits taken as they hang above the front 

counter in City Hall.  The City pays for this service and I will be sending out information to all of 

you this week on the vendor “Professional Portraits”.  New pictures frames are being ordered 

along with new name plates. 

 

 We have ordered a council timer of which should be here by the next council meeting.  One will 

hang behind the dais and the other will be mounted in the back of the room. 

 

Here is a breakdown of the dates until the end of the year for budgeting and workshops. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

7 
October 21, 2013 

 

1.  October 21, 2013 – New council members take the oath of office. 

 

2.  October 28, 2013 – New elected officials take office and budget workbooks are 

given to them with info from all depts. 

 

3. November 2, 2013 – Council Orientation – All depts. will give a presentation to 

council on the workings of their depts. 

 

4. November 4, 2013 – 1
st
 reading of the 2014 budget 

 

5. November 12, 13, & 14, 2013 – 2014 Budget Workshops – Let Kathy know when 

you would like to give your presentation of your dept. budget. 

Tuesday – Admin, Professional Services, Fire Department 

Wednesday – Police Department, Building Dept, Public Works 

Thursday – Utilities 

 

6. November 18, 2013 – Cancel the council meeting by resolution and reschedule – this 

is the week of AML, AAMC, and AGFOA 

 

7. November 25, 2013 – 2
nd

 reading of the 2014 NP Budget 

 

8. December 2, 2013 – 3
rd

 and final reading of the 2014 NP Budget 
 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS 
None 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
Representative Doug Isaacson – 

Legislative Update- 

 Rep. Isaacson thanked Mayor Ward for updating Senator Coghill and himself on the 

Capital Priority request.  They will ask for a placeholder in the Governor’s budget for the 

wastewater. 

 May have a skinny state budget this next year but BP is bringing in two new wells. 

 Good news for NP budget, hotel bed tax decline because of no activity from Eielson.  

They are looking forward to more business with the F16s and UAV’s will also be 

coming. 

 Several bills that the legislature is working on; 

1.  Energy 

2. Landlord/Tenant act 

3. Military driver’s license 

4. Reclassification 

5. 1-1-2  

6. 1 Regulation in, 1 Regulation out 

7. Legislative support for Railroad Extension to expand North 

8. Giving control of Right of Way to municipalities. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

8 
October 21, 2013 

9. Natural Gas 

 

Mr. McGhee asked what the legislature was going to do about the military starting the fire this 

past summer. 

 

Rep. Isaacson said he is not on the federal side but he can find out whether they are going to 

reimburse the state for it. 

 

Mr. McGhee asked about the cost, over $200,000,000 to residents, and how they are going to 

recover that.  He also asked about the air quality that we are having now, already with the 

seasonally warm temps. 

 

Rep. Isaacson said that natural gas is the answer to this.  There is a citizen initiative on air quality 

for the state to take this over.  It is important for the citizens to comment over the 120 days as 

there are many in the Interior who need to burn or have wood as their primary source of heat.  

There will be two more public meetings in the Interior and he encouraged everyone to attend. 

 

Mr. Smith asked about the dedication of the bridges. 

 

Rep. Isaacson said that the two bridges that cross the flood control will be dedicated to Con & 

Nellie Miller on October 25
th

. 

 

Mike Gendreau, 1105 St. Nicholas Drive 

Mr. Gendreau said that he had a meth user come in and steal from his store.  Officer Gore came 

within 5 minutes of the call, watched the tape, and arrested the man and had $300 worth of 

merchandise returned from him.   

He asked the council to give the NPPD priority with the budget as there seems to be a serious 

drug problem in the area.   

 

Ino Welch, 931 Les Rogers Turnaround 

Ms. Welch said she had talked with some residents about the 5
th

 Ave Park and why the FNSB 

has a park within our City limits.  She said the park is not kept up and that City employees need 

to take action on that. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
None 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

2013 STATE HOMELAND SECURITY & EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT OF GRANT 

AWARD, EMW-2013-SS-00098, IN THE AMOUNT OF $60,762 

Chief Lane introduced and updated the council on the grant award.  The council had the 

opportunity to ask questions regarding the breakdown of the grant monies. 

 

Public Comment 

None 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

9 
October 21, 2013 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approved the 2013 State Homeland Security & Emergency 

Management Of Grant Award, EMW-2013-SS-00098, In The Amount Of $60,762 

 

Seconded by Ms. Hunter 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

 

PASSED 

YES – 5 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Mr. Smith – thanked everyone for coming out tonight.  He asked everyone to be cautious with 

the changing weather and icy roads. 

 

Mr. McGhee – be careful on the roads.  He commended the Public Works for their work on the 

bus stop and other projects within the City.  He will talk with Chief Lane about the Halloween 

truck. 

 

Ms. Hunter – appreciates the people who came out tonight.  Thanked Mr. Gendreau for giving 

the NPPD kudo’s for a job well done.  Congrats to new council members. 

 

Mr. Holm – been an interesting three years but hasn’t always been fun.  Most important thing he 

can say is to address the members of the council and new members that what he has seen and the 

decision that have made are not always in the best interest to the public.  He said the council  

forgets who put us here and that we are elected to represent the people and not the employees of 

North Pole.   

 

Mayor Ward – This week is the week of AFN.  They are seeking for volunteers and he would 

be happy to give out the number to anyone who is interested.  He is looking forward to the new 

council members coming up and great things happening in the City. 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. McGhee adjourned the meeting at 9:17 p.m.  

 

Seconded by Mr. Holm 

 

The regular meeting of October 21, 2013 adjourned at 9:17 p.m. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 21, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

10 
October 21, 2013 

 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, November 4, 2013. 

  

      ____________________________________ 

      Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

                                   

 

_________________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 









































































































































Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Public Hearing #1 or 3:  November   4, 2013 

Public Hearing #2 of 3:  November 25, 2013 

 Public Hearing #3 of 3:   December   2, 2013                              
 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

ORDINANCE 13-14 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL 

ESTABLISHING THE 2014 BUDGET AND LEVYING THE MIL RATE 
 

Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a special nature and shall not be included in 

the North Pole Code of Ordinances. 

 

Section 2.  General Fund Operating Budget.  The anticipated general fund revenues of 

$5,349,809  are hereby appropriated to fund January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 operations 

as follows: 

 

Administration 581,551 

Professional Services 383,624 

Police Department 1,776,215 

Fire Department 1,951,358 

Public Works 657,061 

Total 5,349,809 

 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective on January 1, 2014. 

 

Section 4.   Utility Fund Operating Budget.  The anticipated utility fund revenues of 

$1,517,619  are hereby appropriated to fund January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 operations 

as follows: 

 

Utility Department Water 

Operating Budget 

 

755,679 

Utility Department Sewer 

Operating Budget 

761,940 

Total 1,517,619 

 

 

Section 5.  Water Reserves Fund.  This fund accounts for the revenues that are received 

from the FRR and Water Base portions of the water bills and expenses related to capital 

projects for water. 

 

Transfer from Water Dept (FRR) 81,120 

Transfer from Water Dept 

(Water Base) 

106,128 

Total 187,248 

 

 

 



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Public Hearing #1 or 3:  November   4, 2013 

Public Hearing #2 of 3:  November 25, 2013 

 Public Hearing #3 of 3:   December   2, 2013                              

 

 

 

Section 6.  Sewer Reserves Fund.  This fund accounts for the revenues that are received 

from the FRR and Water Base portions of the sewer bills and expenses related to capital 

projects for sewer. 

 

Transfer from Sewer Dept (FRR) 63,511 

Transfer from Sewer Dept  

(FRR-Industrial) 

63,511 

Transfer from Sewer Dept 

(Sewer Base) 

72,000 

Total 199,022 

 

Section 7.  Building Fund Operating Budget.  The anticipated building fund revenues of 

$76,085 are hereby appropriated to fund January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 operations as 

follows: 

Building Fund-Revenue 114,500 

Building Fund-Expenditures 114,500 

 

Section 8.  Special Revenues.  Special Revenue Fund Accounts exist for Abade, AHSO 

Traffic Officer, Byrne JAG Officer, Vehicle Fleet Funds, and State Forfeiture. These accounts 

are similar in nature to the capital fund, revenues and expenditures may carry over from one 

fiscal year to the next.  

 

   

Section 9.  Mill Rate.  The assessed valuation of all taxable property in the City of North 

Pole has been estimated at $368,185,060 for 2013.  The rate of levy on each dollar of taxable 

property is hereby fixed at 3.50 mills for municipal purposes.  The tax levies are due, 

delinquent, and subject to penalties prescribed by law and by the Fairbanks North Star 

Borough. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council 

this 2
nd

 day of December, 2013. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 
 

 



 60th ANNIVERSARY 

BRYCE WARD 2014 ANNUAL BUDGET 
JANUARY 1, 2014 – DECEMBER 31, 2014  CITY MAYOR 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget



ANNUAL BUDGET 

OF THE 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

FOR 

CALENDAR YEAR 2014 

BRYCE WARD 
CITY MAYOR 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget



City of North Pole, Alaska 
2014 Proposed Budget 

 

Table of Contents 

            Page 

 

Mayors Message……………………………………………………………..................... 1 

  

Appropriations Ordinance 

 City of North Pole budget ordinance 13-14 …………………………….……….….. 3 

Introduction 

 City Organizational Chart…………………………………………………………… 5 

 2014 City of North Pole Department Directors ……………………………………. 6 

 2014 City of North Pole Council Members ……………………………………….. 7  

 City of North Pole aerial map………………………………………………………. 8 

 Political Geographic Info………………………………………………………….. 9 

 North Pole History ………………………………………………………………… 11 

 Historical Sales Tax & Mill Rates…………………………………………..…….. 12  

 Investments ……………………………………………………………………….. 14 

 Long term debt ……………………………………………………………………. 15  

 Major Funds ……………………………………………………………………… 19 

 Operating Revenues – General & Utility Funds …………………………………. 20 

 Operating Expenses – General & Utility Funds………………………………….. 21 

 Expense Variance – General & Utility Funds…………………………………….. 22 

General Fund  

General Fund Narrative ……………………………………………………….. 23 

Revenue 

 General Fund Revenue ……. …………………………………………..………. 25 

i 
 



City of North Pole, Alaska 
2014 Proposed Budget 

 
 

Administration 

 Narrative – City Clerk ………………………………………………..…………. 26 

Narrative – Human Resources ………………………………….………………. 28 

 Administration Expenses ………………………………………………………… 29  

 

Professional Services  

 Narrative …………………………………………………………………………. 31 

 Professional Services Expenses…………………………………………………… 32 

 

Fire  

Organizational Chart ……………………………………………………………… 33  

Narrative – Chief Buddy Lane…….………………………………………………. 34 

Fire Dept. Expenses ……………………………………………………………….. 37 

  

Police 

 Narrative – Chief Steve Dutra …………………………………………………….. 39 

 Organizational Chart ………………………………………………………………. 51 

 Police Dept. Expenses……………………………………………………………… 53 

 

Public Works 

 Narrative – Director of City Services, Bill Butler…………………………………. 55 

 Public Works Dept. Expenses ………………………………………..…………… 57  

 

 

ii 
 



City of North Pole, Alaska 
2014 Proposed Budget 

 
 

Water Sewer Utility Funds 

 Narrative – Director of City Services, Bill Butler ………………………………….. 59 

Summary by Department …………………………………………………………… 62 

 

Water  

  Utility Dept. Water Revenue …………………………………………………… 63 

  Utility Dept. Water Expense …………………………………………………… 65 

  Utility Fund Water Reserves (Fund 25)………………………………………….    67 

 

Sewer  

  Utility Dept. Sewer Revenue …………………………………………………… 68 

  Utility Dept. Sewer Expense ………………………………………………….. 69 

  Utility Fund Sewer Reserves (Fund 27) ………………………………………. 73 

Utility Fleet Fund (Fund 55) 

  Utility Department Fleet Fund………………………………………………. .... 74 

Capital Projects - Utility (Fund 03) 

  Utility Department Capital Projects Expenses and Revenue Sources……..…….  75 

 

Building Department 

 Narrative – Director of City Services, Bill Butler ………………………………….. 76 

      Building Department Revenues and Expenses………………………………………     77 

 

 

 

iii 
 



City of North Pole, Alaska 
2014 Proposed Budget 

 
 

Other Funds 

 Fund 07 (Gaming Fund) …………………………………………………………… 78 

 Fund 16 (Fire Department)…………………………………………………………. 79 

 Fund 18 (NP Community Ice Rink) ……………………………………………….. 80 

 Fund 20 (North Pole Festival)……………………………………………………… 81 

 Fund 21 (ABADE- Federal Forfeitures)……………………………………….….. 82 

 Fund 22 (AHSO- Traffic Officer)………………………………………………….. 83 

 Fund 23 (BYRNE JAG-Drug Officer)…………………………………………….. 84 

 Fund 24 (ABADE- State Forfeitures) …………………………………………….. 85 

 Fund 31 Capital Projects General Government ……………………………..…….. 86 

 Fund 32 (Itadori- Sister City) ………………………………………………….…. 87 

 Fund 33 (IRS - Forfeitures) ……………………………………………………….. 88 

 Fund 36 (Impound Lot) ……………………………………………………………. 89 

 Fund 50 (Fleet Fund- Fire) ……………………………………………………..….. 90 

 Fund 51 (Fleet Fund- Police) ………………………………………………………. 91 

 Fund 52 (Fleet Fund-Admin) ……………………………………………………… 92 

 Fund 53 (Fleet Fund- Public Works) ……………………………………….…….. 93 

 Fund 54 (General Government Capital Projects Reserve) ………………………… 94 

Appendix 

 Utility Priorities Resolution 13-13…………………………………………………. 95 

 General Government Priorities Resolution 13-15……………………………….… 96 

 

  

iv 
 



October 28, 2013 

Honorable North Pole City Council, 

It is my pleasure to present to the 2014 budget for the City of North Pole.  The 2014 

budget has gone through some substantial changes and holds more information to 

better inform the public what services the City of North Pole provides, how we provide 

them, and the cost associated to do so.   

I would be remiss if I didn’t also give credit to our department heads and city staff for 

continuing to ensure the City runs efficiently under fiscally constrained budgets.  The 

Council and Mayor may set the direction of the City, but it is our staff, which is tasked 

with implementing the Policy set forth.  My hat goes off to those employees and 

volunteers who make North Pole a great place to live, work, and play.  Thank you for 

your dedication to our city.   

Budget Highlights 

Narratives have been provided by all departments as well as historical data, which will 

give a better picture of where the City has come from and where we are headed.  Along 

with historical data we have also changed the format of the budget to be easier to read 

and understand.   

In the past, municipalities who were enrolled in PERS in Alaska have received a PERS 

relief contribution equal to about 13% of our eligible wages.  This contribution by the 

State of Alaska is a non-cash expense, meaning that we must show the contribution on 

our books even though no cash is received or exchanged for it.  Past years we have 

added it to the actuals at the end of the year.  However, it has not been reflected in the 

budgets approved by council.  In 2014, we are now including this in the budget to reflect 

changes to GASB rules and to better reflect the contribution from the state.    

In 2013, the council approved Ordinance 13-08 to create designated Vehicle Fleet Funds 

for all departments and a designated Capital Projects Fund (reserve).  Funding sources 

for these funds will be in the form of transfers from the General Fund equal to a 

percentage of the mill rate as established in Ordinance 13-08.  Allowing these monies to 

accrue over a period of time will enable the various departments to make new fleet 

purchases from these monies in the future. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

1



The City of North Pole was very fortunate to be included in the State Capital Budget in 

2013.  We received over 1.2 million dollars in grants for a much needed ambulance, 

rescue ladder truck, improvement monies for our Police Department heating system as 

well as monies for our City Clerk’s office to do upgrades to our archiving system, 

including digitalizing information.  We are grateful for the desire of the legislature to 

help in our local projects.  

Capital projects requests to the State Legislature must now include a 10% match for all 

monies requested.  This shows that the local community is vested in their requested 

projects. 

Challenges 

 2013 was a financially difficult year.  Several key revenue streams in our budget did not 

occur and at mid-year we made budget adjustments to reflect revenue and expenditure 

decreases of over $160,000.  The City of North Pole still faces considerable challenges in 

our economy and tax base in 2014.  The downgraded value of the Refinery, loss of State 

supplemental Revenue Sharing, the Air Forces proposed F-16’s move (fortunately 

abandoned), high energy cost, the sequestration and government shutdowns, all have a 

negative effect on North Pole’s economy and stability.  Although we have significant 

challenges in front of us, we also are on the precipice of many electrifying proposals in 

the immediate future such as natural gas and the prospect of F-35’s, which could help 

alleviate many of our challenges.     

Due to the reduction in revenues and the increasing costs to operate, we will be 

reducing our staffing levels in 2014 through attrition at our Fire and Police departments.  

The effect of these reductions will affect level of services within the City.  However, we 

are hoping the effects will be minimal.   Please see each department’s budget for the 

breakdown of these adjustments.   

Respectfully, 

Bryce J. Ward,  

North Pole City Mayor 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

2



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Public Hearing #1 or 3:  November   4, 2013 

Public Hearing #2 of 3:  November 25, 2013 

 Public Hearing #3 of 3:   December   2, 2013 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

ORDINANCE 13-14 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL 

ESTABLISHING THE 2014 BUDGET AND LEVYING THE MIL RATE 

Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a special nature and shall not be included in 

the North Pole Code of Ordinances. 

Section 2.  General Fund Operating Budget.  The anticipated general fund revenues of 

$5,349,809  are hereby appropriated to fund January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 operations 

as follows: 

Administration 581,551 

Professional Services 383,624 

Police Department 1,776,215 

Fire Department 1,951,358 

Public Works 657,061 

Total 5,349,809 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective on January 1, 2014. 

Section 4.   Utility Fund Operating Budget.  The anticipated utility fund revenues of 

$1,517,619  are hereby appropriated to fund January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 operations 

as follows: 

Utility Department Water 

Operating Budget 

755,679 

Utility Department Sewer 

Operating Budget 

761,940 

Total 1,517,619 

Section 5.  Water Reserves Fund.  This fund accounts for the revenues that are received 

from the FRR and Water Base portions of the water bills and expenses related to capital 

projects for water. 

Transfer from Water Dept (FRR) 81,120 

Transfer from Water Dept 

(Water Base) 

106,128 

Total 187,248 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

3



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Public Hearing #1 or 3:  November   4, 2013 

Public Hearing #2 of 3:  November 25, 2013 

 Public Hearing #3 of 3:   December   2, 2013 

Section 6.  Sewer Reserves Fund.  This fund accounts for the revenues that are received 

from the FRR and Water Base portions of the sewer bills and expenses related to capital 

projects for sewer. 

Transfer from Sewer Dept (FRR) 63,511 

Transfer from Sewer Dept 

(FRR-Industrial) 

63,511 

Transfer from Sewer Dept 

(Sewer Base) 

72,000 

Total 199,022 

Section 7.  Building Fund Operating Budget.  The anticipated building fund revenues of 

$76,085 are hereby appropriated to fund January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 operations as 

follows: 

Building Fund-Revenue 114,500 

Building Fund-Expenditures 114,500 

Section 8.  Special Revenues.  Special Revenue Fund Accounts exist for Abade, AHSO 

Traffic Officer, Byrne JAG Officer, Vehicle Fleet Funds, and State Forfeiture. These accounts 

are similar in nature to the capital fund, revenues and expenditures may carry over from one 

fiscal year to the next.  

Section 9.  Mill Rate.  The assessed valuation of all taxable property in the City of North 

Pole has been estimated at $368,185,060 for 2013.  The rate of levy on each dollar of taxable 

property is hereby fixed at 3.50 mills for municipal purposes.  The tax levies are due, 

delinquent, and subject to penalties prescribed by law and by the Fairbanks North Star 

Borough. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council 

this 2
nd

 day of December, 2013.

______________________________ 

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

4



Created by: Kathy Weber 

October 22,, 2012 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

MAYOR 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY ATTORNEY CITY CLERK/HR 

MAYOR 

POLICE CHIEF 

POLICE LT. Evidence Custodian 

Dispatcher 

Admin Asst. 

FIRE CHIEF DIRECTOR OF 

CITY SERVICES 

B SHIFT 

Capt 

C SHIFT 

Capt 

 

Utility Asst 

A/P, Bus Lic 
Admin Asst 

Building Dept 

Utility Billing 

A/R 

Deputy Chief 

City Accountant 

Utility Asst 
Seasonal 

Utility 

Supervisor 

Public Works 

Supervisor 

PW Asst. Utility Operator 

Volunteers Volunteers Volunteers 

Detective 

ABADE 

GRAVE SHIFT 

SGT 

SWING SHIFT 

SGT 

DAY SHIFT 

SGT 

Police Officer Police Officer Police Officer 

RESERVES 

A Shift 

Capt 

Lt. Lt.. Lt. 

A Shift 

Engineer 

B Shift 

Engineer 

C Shift 

Engineer 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

5



Revised:  October 21, 2013 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

2014 

Department Directors 

Director     Mailing Address Phone ____ 

Mayor 

Bryce Ward  125 Snowman Lane  P: 907-488-8584 

Term 10/12-10/15 North Pole, AK  99705 F: 907-488-3002 

email:  bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org C: 907-888-4444 

Director of City Services 

Bill Butler North Pole Utilities  P: 907-488-8593 

North Pole Public Works F: 907-488-3002 

email:  bill.butler@northpolealaska.org 

North Pole Fire Department 
Buddy Lane, Fire Chief 110 Lewis St.  P: 907-488-0444 

North Pole, AK 99705 F: 907-488-3747 

email:  blane@northpolefire.org 

North Pole Police Department 

Steve Dutra, Police Chief 125 Snowman Lane  P: 907-488-6902 

North Pole, AK 99705 F: 907-488-5299 

email:  sdutra@northpolepolice.org 

Chief Financial Officer 

Lisa Vaughn  125 Snowman Lane  P: 907-488-8594 

. North Pole, AK 99705 F: 907-488-3002 

email:  lisa.vaughn@northpolealaska.org 

City Clerk/HR Manager 

Kathy Weber  125 Snowman Lane  P: 907-488-8583 

North Pole, AK 99705 F: 907-488-3002    

email: kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org C: 907-388-2728 

City of North Pole Website is located at:  www.northpolealaska.com 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

6

mailto:bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org
mailto:bill.butler@northpolealaska.org
mailto:blane@northpolefire.org
mailto:sdutra@northpolepolice.org
mailto:lisa.vaughn@northpolealaska.org
mailto:kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org
http://www.northpolealaska.com/


Revised:  October 9, 2013 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

2014 

MAYOR & COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Council Member     Mailing Address Phone 

Mayor 

Bryce Ward  606 E 5
th

 Ave (H)488-7314 

Term 10/12-10/15 North Pole, AK  99705 (C)388-4830 

email:  bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org 

Council Members 

Elizabeth Holm 2454 San Augustine Dr. (H)488-6125 

Term:  10/13-10/16  North Pole, AK 99705 (C)347-3797 

Email:  elizabeth87@live.com 

Sharron Hunter,  322 Crossway  (H)488-4282 

Term: 10/12 – 10/15  North Pole, AK 99705 (W)488-3761 

email:  sharron.hunter@K12northstar.org 

Kevin McCarthy 1051 Refinery Loop  (H)590-0800 

Term:  10/13 – 10/14  North Pole, AK 99705 (W)377-2678 

Email:  kevin@northpolegallery.com 

Thomas R. McGhee  1155 North Star Dr.  

Term: 10/13 – 10/14  North Pole, Alaska 99705 (W)455-0010 

email:  thomas.mcghee@northpolealaska.org  

Preston Smith PO Box 60882  (H)488-8824 

Term:  10/13 – 10/16  Fairbanks, AK 99706 

Email:  preston.smith@northpolealaska.org 

Michael Welch 934 Les Rogers Turnaround (H)488-5834 

Term:  10/13 – 10/15  North Pole, AK 99705 

Email:  northpolemike@gmail.com 

City Clerk/HR Manager 

Kathy Weber  125 Snowman Lane  

North Pole, AK 99705 (W)488-8583     

email: kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org  (C)388-2728 

 (F)488-3002 

City of North Pole Web Site is located at:  www.northpolealaska.com 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

7

mailto:bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org
mailto:elizabeth87@live.com
mailto:sharron.hunter@K12northstar.org
mailto:kevin@northpolegallery.com
mailto:thomas.mcghee@northpolealaska.org
mailto:preston.smith@northpolealaska.org
mailto:northpolemike@gmail.com
mailto:kathy.weber@northpolealaska.org
http://www.northpolealaska.com/


City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

8



PPPOOOLLLIIITTTIIICCCAAALLL   GGGEEEOOOGGGRRRAAAPPPHHHYYY

SCHOOLS 

North Pole Elementary  School  453  Students-   250 Snowman Lane 488-2286 

North Pole Middle School  679  Students – 300 East 8th Ave  488-2271 

North Pole High School         730  Students  - 601 NPHS Blvd 488-3761 

LAND AREA:  4.1 square miles in city limits. 

POPULATION:  There are 2117 people in the North Pole City limits.  In a 15-mile radius of the city, the 

population is 32,000.  A 2010 census reported 129 American Indian or Alaska Native, 129 Black or 

African American, 136 Asian, 8 Asian/Pacific Islands and the remainder 1836 Caucasian or other. 

TRANSPORTATION:  The Richardson Highway and the Alaska Railroad pass through the city linking 

the city to the rest of the state and Canada.  There are five privately owned airstrips in the vicinity and 

Fairbanks International Airport is nearby.  Additionally, residents are served by the Borough Bus System 

and Van Tran for senior citizens, and disabled residents.   

TRAFFIC COUNTS:   Alaska Department of Transportation reports 12,000 vehicles passing through 

North Pole City limits daily. 

ECONOMY:  Major employers:  Flint Hills Oil Refinery, Petro Star Refinery, Fairbanks North Star 

Borough School District, Safeway, Wells Fargo Bank, Key Bank, Mt. McKinley Bank, Alaska USA 

Credit Union, McDonald’s, United States Postal Service, Santa Claus House, and the City of North Pole. 

There are a variety of fast food restaurants and three mini-malls that provide a variety of services and 

goods.   

STATE SALES TAX:  0 

PROPERTY TAX:  (2013) 3.5 Mills City of North Pole, FNSB 12.971 Mills 

CITY SALES TAX:  4% (some exemptions) $8.00 maximum collected per sale.  Tax collected from 

businesses within the Corporate City Limits or any sales made within the Corporate City Limits. 

HEALTH CARE:  Dr. Marshall, family practice, North Pole Prescription Laboratory, Carr’s Pharmacy, 

North Pole Chiropractic, North Pole Optical,  North Pole Physical Therapy, North Pole Veterinary 

Hospital and four dentists:   Dr. Buetow, Dr. Eichler, Dr. Rodriguez, and Dr. Rhotan. 

City of North Pole 

“Where the spirit of Christmas Lives Year Round” 
Incorporated January 15, 1953  

Home Rule City 

The City of North Pole is a part of the Fairbanks North 

Star Borough, Fairbanks Recording District, House 

District 33 & 34, Senate District Q. 

North Pole is located 14 miles southeast of Fairbanks 

on the Richardson Highway in the Tanana River 

Valley, 386 miles north  of Anchorage, 2,,347 miles 

north of Seattle, and 140 miles south of the Arctic 

Circle.  North Pole lies midway between Fort 

Wainwright Army Post and Eielson Air Force Base. 

64 45’ N Latitude, 147 21’ Longitude Section 09, 

T002E, Fairbanks Meridian. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

9



HOUSING:  There are hundreds of undeveloped lots with city water and sewer services available.  

Holiday Heights provides affordable housing to senior citizens, which is not tied to income.  HUD 

Housing apartments are also available along with numerous private apartment and duplex rentals. 

COMMUNICATION:  KJNP (King Jesus North Pole) is a local AM/FM radio and television studio 

providing religious and community broadcasts.  Cable TV, telephone, pager and cell phone services are 

available.  The United Postal Service has a North Pole Branch.  The North Pole Chamber of Commerce 

operates a summer visitor center and Golden Valley Electric Association provides electrical service to 

area residents. 

SPORTS AND RECREATION: There are three parks with playground equipment within city limits. 

Santa’s Seniors Center offers a breakfast service, weekly activities and meals for senior citizens.  In close 

proximity there are soccer, baseball and softball fields, hockey rinks, indoor, year round swimming, 

biking, fishing and picnic facilities in the summer; cross-country skiing, dog mushing, and snow 

machining in the winter.  North Pole sponsors winter and summer festivals, a Christmas Light Decorating 

Contest, and a Community Christmas Candle Lighting Ceremony.  The City has a 15 year sister city 

exchange program with the village of Itadori, Japan.  Each year the two cities exchange students and adult 

chaperones.   

CITY GOVERNMENT - The city is governed by a strong mayor and six council members.  The City 

Council meets the first and third Monday of each month.  The City provides police protection with 14 full 

time employees, fire protection with 14 fulltime employees and 30 volunteers, water and sewer service 

with 4 fulltime employees and public works with 2 fulltime and 2 seasonal  employees.  In addition the 

city employs a City Accountant, City Clerk/HR Manager, Director of City Services, Utility Billing/AR 

Clerk and AP/receptionist. 

CITY SERVICES:  The North Pole Fire Department provides excellent fire and ambulance service to 

area residents.  Classroom facilities are available for public meetings in the council chambers at city hall 

and in the fire station annex.  North Pole Police Department provides law enforcement and protection 

services with a fleet of cruisers, SUV and bicycles.   Our city streets are 90 percent paved, with excellent 

street maintenance and snow removal.  The Utility Department provides clear, clean, metered water to 

residents and businesses.  The majority of our residents enjoy an ISO rating of 3.  City Hall provides 

Notary services and citizens can purchase fingerprinting cards for employment purposes.  Vacation house 

watch services are available through the police department. 

HISTORY:  In 1944, Bon Davis homesteaded this area.  Dahl and Gaske Development Company later 

bought the Davis Homestead, subdivided it and named in North Pole.  The name was selected to attract 

the toy industry to manufacture articles made in “North Pole”.  This endeavor failed to blossom, but 

North Pole has continued to grow.  There is continued interest to develop North Pole as a theme city, 

“Where the spirit of Christmas lives year round”.  Many streets bear holiday names:  Santa Claus Lane, 

Snowman Lane, Kris Kringle, Mistletoe, Holiday Rd., Saint Nicholas Drive, North Star Drive, Blitzen, 

and Donnor.  Streetlights are decorated in candy cane motifs and many buildings are painted with 

Christmas colors and designs.  The Santa Claus house, the “official” home of Santa Claus greets all 

visitors who pass through the city on the Richardson Highway.  Live reindeer and Santa Claus himself are 

available for photographs year round.  Each year the community kicks off the holiday season with a 

candle lighting and tree lighting ceremony, and the opening of Christmas In Ice, an annual ice carving 

event, the first Sunday in December. 

SERVICE ORGANIZATIONS:  North Pole Chamber of Commerce, North Pole Moose, North Pole 

Lions, North Pole Rotary, North Pole Kiwanis, VFW, Santa’s Seniors, Senior Housing Authority, and 

North Pole Grange. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

10



In 1891 Congress enacted legislation for town sites 
to be laid out in Alaska under regulations specified 
by the Secretary of the Interior.  The same 
legislation made it possible for a person to obtain 

160 acres outside town sites but only for trading and manufacturing purposes.  This helped the growing 
number of fish canneries, if no one else.  Bon & Bernice Davis arrived in Fairbanks on April 7, 1944. 
They rented a car and drove down the Richardson Highway.  At 15-Mile, an abandoned part of the 
original Richardson Trail led off into the timber along the west bank of 14-Mile Slough. They left the car 
on the main road and walked  along  the trail from which the snow had been plowed to enable trucks to 
haul cordwood.  They walked for several hundred yards, stopping and looking.  Finally, they topped, 
looked and both spoke the same words at the same time – “This is it!!!” 

The land lying west of the slough was covered with scrub trees and brush.  Tall spruce grew 
along the banks of the slough and on the land lying between it and the Pile-Driver Slough to the east. 
They had been told that grayling and beaver were plentiful in both streams where a variety of waterfowl 
made their summer homes.  Moose, deer, wolves, fox, snowshoe rabbits, squirrels and spruce hen lived 
on their homestead to-be. 

Little did they dream that their undistinguished 160 acres of scrub trees and brush would ever be 
more than just a homestead, much less that it would be called a city.  Shortly after they obtained patent, 
they sold John Owen and George Manley each a one-acre tract fronting on the Richardson Highway for 
$500 an acre.   

Among problems involved in starting a subdivision was selection of a suitable name.  His 
dilemma was solved when he learned that the National Board of Geographic Names had given the name 
“Davis” to the switch built on his homestead when the railroad connecting Ladd Field and Eielson Air 
Force Base was constructed in 1948. 

Ernest Finnel and James Ford each had a homestead adjoining the west side of his.  Though they 
had filed about one year and a half after Bon Davis had left, the three received their patents almost at the 
same time.  Finnel and Davis had discussed subdividing and both of them began doing it in 1950.  Ford 
decided to keep his homestead intact. 

With electrical power assured, their land became more in demand.  Orland Carey bought the 
north 40 acres of  the Bon Davis homestead in November, 1951, and gave it the name of Sequoia 
Subdivision.  In February, 1952, Dahl and Gaske Development Company bought the Davis Subdivision 
and the balance of the homestead, except for a few parcels. 

    Dahl and Gaske, who had bought the Davis homestead and subdivided it, thought if the 
growing settlement there were named North Pole it would attract business.  They reasoned that some toy 
manufacturer might be induces to locate a plant there so his products could be advertised as having been 
made in North Pole.  Also, someone might start a Santa Land which would become a northern version of 
Disneyland. 

They approached Bon Davis to petition the United States District Court to change the name from 
“Davis”, which had been the official name since 1949, to North Pole.  Bon Davis thought that their idea 
was far-fetched but acceded to their request.  U.S. District Judge Harry Pratt held a hearing and issued a 
decree making North Pole the official name. 

When it was proposed that the two subdivisions be incorporated into a city known as North Pole, 
residents of Highway Park rallied their forces and soundly defeated the measure at an election.  They 
wanted no part of North Pole, incorporated or otherwise. 

Those living in North Pole clung to the idea of incorporation.  Another election was held after the 
proposed boundaries were reduced so that only the original Davis homestead and part of the one 
belonging to James Ford were included.  Incorporation carried at that election and North Pole became a 
first-class city on January 15, 1953. 

The first city council had five members:  Everett Dahl, James Ford, Ray Johnson, Robert McAtee 
and Con Miller.  The council appointed James Ford as Mayor pro tem. 

North Pole History City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

11



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

2 6

2 7

2 8

2 9

3 0

3 1

3 2

3 3

3 4

3 5

3 6

3 7

3 8

3 9

4 0

4 1

4 2

4 3

4 4

4 5

4 6

A B C

DATE SALES TAX RATE MIL RATE
1953 0 3
1954 1 3
1955 1 3
1956 1 3
1957 1 3
1958 1 3
1959 1 3
1960 2 12
1961 2 12
1962 2 12
1963 2 12
1964 2 8
1965 2 8
1966 2 8
1967 2 7
1968 3 13
1969 3 11
1970 3 12
1971 3 12
1972 3 12
1973 3 12
1974 0 12
1975 .5 & 3 5.8
1976 3 5.8
1977 3 5.8
1978 3 5.8
1979 3 5.8
1980 3 5.8
1981 3 5.8
1982 3 5.8
1983 3 5.8
1984 3 5.8
1985 3 5.8
1986 3 3
1987 3 2
1988 3 2
1989 3 2
1990 3 2
1991 3 2
1992 3 2
1993 3 2
1994 3 2.35
1995 3 2.35
1996 3 2.3
1997 3 2.3

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

12



4 7

4 8

4 9

5 0

5 1

5 2

5 3

5 4

5 5

5 6

5 7

5 8

5 9

6 0

6 1

6 2

A B C

1998 3 2.3
1999 3 2.3
2000 3 2.4
2001 3 2.4
2002 3 3
2003 3 3
2004 4 3
2005 4 3
2006 4 3
2007 4 3
2008 4 3
2009 4 3
2010 4 3
2011 4 3
2012 4 3
2013 4 3.5

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

13



INVESTMENTS 

In 2012, the City closed out three bank accounts that had monies for our three bond reserves (related to 
assessments).  We rolled that money ($162,000) into a –one-year CD, renewable in August.   

The City has no other investments. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

14



CITY OF NORTH POLE
LONG TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

CONTACT: Mariela Figueroa
907-761-7779 fax 907-761-7793
mariela.figueroa@ak.usda.gov

DATES: Due on February 18 and August 18

ISSUE: 595,852.48     

PAYMENTS: $18,482.50  September 1 and March 1
Principal and  & Interest Amounts depend on date of posting by USDA

Electronically Debited from Central Treasury

GL ACCOUNTS: Principal -          02 00 00 2500 Note:  this is budgeted in  02 00 00 6600
Interest -            02 12 00 6500

04 00 00 7092 Assessments:  Transfer Out
02 00 00 5901    WS Transfer In  (principal amt)
02 12 00 5900     Sewer Transfer In (interest amt)

NOTES: There is no assessment for this bond. Payments are made out of Central Treasury.

The liability is booked because it is in an enterprise fund.

Ordinance 96-01
   Sets up the issue to go to voters for approval.

Ordinance 98-01 
   Page 2 - Reserve Fund Requirement - $18,482.50
   Page 7 - Section 11 - Revenues/Monies in Utility Fund are to pay 1) Operating Costs,

2) Principal and Interest on Bond, 3) Keep Reserve Fund for Bond
   Page 8 - Amts in Reserve Fund are Pledged as Security for the Bond.  City may

withdraw from the Reserve Fund to pay Bond if Utility Revenues are
insufficient to pay the Bond.  

Year Payment GL Balance Year Payment Total By Year
2008 574,547.33           
2009 4,362.81         570,184.52           2009 14,119.69           - 

4,698.48         565,486.04           13,784.02           27,903.71     
2010 4,693.29         560,792.75           2010 13,789.21           - 

4,922.92         555,869.83           13,559.58           27,348.79     
2011 4,819.16         551,050.67           2011 13,663.34           

5,158.42         545,892.25           13,324.08           26,987.42     
2012 5,064.37         540,827.88           2012 13,418.13           

5,405.55         535,422.33           13,076.95           26,495.08     
2013 5,321.67         530,100.66           2013 13,160.83           

5,664.89         524,435.77           12,817.61           25,978.44     

PRINCIPAL INTEREST

USDA LOAN 92-06  -  HIGHWAY PARK SEWER BOND - District 1

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

15

mailto:ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
mailto:kathleen.graves@bnymellon.com
mailto:ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
mailto:annamccully@bnymellon.com


CITY OF NORTH POLE
LONG TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

CONTACT: Mariela Figueroa
907-761-7779 fax 907-761-7793
mariela.figueroa@ak.usda.gov

DATES: Due on June 20

ISSUE: $300,000 @ 4.75%

PAYMENTS: $16,890.00 Due on June 20
Principal and  & Interest Amounts depend on date of posting by USDA

Electronically Debited from Bank 3 - Central Treasury

GL ACCOUNTS: Principal -           04 00 00 6600
Interest -            04 00 00 6500

NOTES: This is in a governmental fund, therefore, the liability is not booked.  
  Instead, by GASB rules, it is assumed that liability belongs to the governmental
   entity as a whole and not just one fund.  As opposed to long term debt in an
   enterprise fund that is assumed to belong to just that one fund.

This assessment is for District 2

Payments are made out of Central Treasury.  
   Required reserve is held in a CD, along with the other bond reserves

In July 2004, City paid an extra $25,000

Revenue bond is a bond that receives payments only from revenues from a specified
   revenue generating entity solely associated with the purpose of the bond.

Ordinance 02-03
  Issue the bond for up to $300,000.  

Year Payment Balance Year Payment Total by Year
2008 - 143,345.00           
2009 10,081.08       133,263.92           2009 6,809.42             6,809.42       
2010 10,559.92       122,704.00           2010 6,330.08             6,330.08       
2011 11,061.53       111,642.47           2011 5,827.47             5,827.47       
2012 11,586.96       100,055.51           2012 5,303.04             5,303.04       
2013 12,137.33       87,918.18             2013 4,752.67             4,752.67       

USDA LOAN 91-08 - HIGHWAY PARK WATER REVENUE BOND - DISTRICT 2

PRINCIPAL INTEREST

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

16

mailto:ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
mailto:kathleen.graves@bnymellon.com
mailto:ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
mailto:annamccully@bnymellon.com


CITY OF NORTH POLE
LONG TERM DEBT
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

CONTACT: Kathleen Graves, Asst VP Ruth Hayes, Sr. Trust Administrator
206-667-8910 fax 206-667-8905 206-336-1615 fax 206-667-8905
kathleen.graves@bnymellon.com ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
annamccully@bnymellon.com

DATES: April 22 Principal and Interest Due
Sept 1 Principal and Interest Due (three years beginning 2012)
October 23 Interest Due

ISSUE: 1,350,000.00        TAS 429186
Bank of New York - Mellon
April 1, 1994

PAYMENTS: Payments for principal and interest are fixed amounts according to payment
   schedule.

GL ACCOUNTS: Principal -           04 00 00 6650
Interest -            04 00 00 6550

NOTES: This is in a governmental fund, therefore, the liability is not booked.  Because it is
   in a governmental fund, it is assumed that it belong to the governmental
   entity as a whole and not just one fund.  As opposed to long term debt in an
   enterprise fund that is assumed to belong to just that one fund.

General Obligation Bond is a bond that is secured by the state/local government's 
  pledge to use legally available resources, such as tax revenues to repay the bond.

Payments are made out of Central Treasury.  Central Treasury is then reimbursed by
   Bank 9.  In 2011, the city quit moving assessment monies over to Bank 9
    Instead, all monies come into  Central Treasury.

This assessment is for Distric 3.

Resolution 04-20
   Sets up the issue to go to voters for approval.
   Payments to come first from the assessments and then from general revenues of 

   the city.  

Ordinance 05-02
   Issue of the Bond.  

Refinanced in May 2012.  Will have three years of a small payment due September 1;
  this will finish off the part of the bond that was not callable. - Paying until May 1, 2015

Year Payment Balance Year Payment Total by Year
2008 1,220,000.00        
2009 50,000.00      1,170,000.00        2009 29,077.50   

30,077.00   59,154.50     
2010 50,000.00      1,120,000.00        2010 29,077.50   

28,077.50   57,155.00     
2011 50,000.00      1,070,000.00        2011 28,077.50   

26,827.50   54,905.00     
2012 55,000.00      1,015,000.00        2012 26,827.50   

10,000.00      1,005,000.00        9,929.03     
4,500.00     41,256.53     

2013 55,000.00      950,000.00     2013 18,325.00   
9,500.00         940,500.00     18,325.00   

3,125.00     39,775.00     

STILLMEYER STREET IMPROVEMENT GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND - DISTRICT 3

PRINCIPAL INTEREST

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

17

mailto:ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
mailto:kathleen.graves@bnymellon.com
mailto:ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
mailto:annamccully@bnymellon.com


CITY OF NORTH POLE
STATE OF ALASKA LOANS
Drinking Water Loan - Loan #633011
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

CONTACT: Terrinn Lowell 907-465-5172
terriann_lowell@dec.state.ak.us

DATES: Principal and Interest due on April 1st of each year
Note:  They do not send a bill

ISSUE: 500,000.00     

PAYMENTS: Principal - $25.000
Interest - Varies - See Schedule

GL ACCOUNTS Principal -           02 00 00 2525
Interest -            02 10 00 6500

25 10 00 7093 Water Reserves - Transfer Out Water Base
02 00 00 5901    WS Transfer In  (principal amt)
02 10 00 5900     Water Transfer In (interest amt)

NOTES: This is for Stillmeyer water

Paid out of utility revenues

We got the loan for the construction.  We constructed the asset…then when it was
done, we had to start paying back the loan it.  We have to pay it back with utility cash because
we created it with a utility asset.  However, we cannot isolate the revenues that applicable to t
It was not a special assessment.  Special assessments are paid back by the beneficiary

Year Payment GL Balance Year Payment Total by Year
2008 450,000.00           2008
2009 25,000.00       425,000.00           2009 6,750.00    6,750.00       
2010 25,000.00       400,000.00           2010 7,956.25    7,956.25       
2011 25,000.00       375,000.00           2011 6,000.00    6,000.00       
2012 25,000.00       350,000.00           2012 5,625.00    5,625.00       
2013 25,000.00       325,000.00           2013 5,250.00    5,250.00       

NOTE:  Interest is  little higher in 2010 than normal…we missed the payment date.   

DEC - Drinking Water Loan

PRINCIPAL INTEREST

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

18

mailto:ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
mailto:kathleen.graves@bnymellon.com
mailto:ruth.hayes@bnymellon.com
mailto:annamccully@bnymellon.com


FUND REVENUES EXPENSES

General Fund 5,349,809         5,349,809       

Water/Sewer Fund 1,517,619         1,517,619       

Building Fund 114,500            114,500           

AHSO Officer 80,256              80,256             

Jag 50,000              50,000             

Total 7,112,184               7,112,184

CITY OF NORTH POLE - 2014 BUDGET

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

19



Actuals Actuals Actuals Approved Budget Proposed Budget
Department 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Sales/Bed Taxes 2,793,448        2,854,936        2,874,657        3,022,105 3,008,001              
Business Licenses -Fees 10,025              15,495              14,830             21,000 18,500 
Property Taxes 913,593           959,554           954,545           1,024,930 1,031,500              
State Grants/Contracts 86,472              69,840              76,312             94,500 101,275 
State Assistance 292,807           332,882           343,801           261,800 261,800 
Fairbanks North Star Borough 357,639           358,946           365,968           385,000 402,000 
Police Revenues 154,545           127,721           97,959             161,250 96,000 
Fire Revenues 18,460              63,882              56,038             66,000 70,500 
Interest 5,121                3,183                2,621                3,000 2,750 
PERS Relief 118,698           241,360           253,763           - 263,851 
Miscellaneous 21,687              60,326              30,325             28,000 30,000 
Federal Grants/Contracts - 82,800              5,320                - 10,000 
   Total General Fund Revenue 4,772,495        5,170,925        5,076,139        5,067,585 5,296,177              
Transfers Into General Fund 30,676              - 1,822                25,288 53,632 
Grand Total General Fund 4,803,171        5,170,925        5,077,962        5,092,873 5,349,809              

Water
Water Sales 642,159           611,267           629,529           701,554 700,853 
State Assistance 8,374                16,481              17,518             - 20,326 
FRR/Water Base 108,197           11,389              - - - 
Tie In Fees 19,900              2,250                200 - - 
Lab Testing 69,267              13,711              19,914             15,001 4,000 
Miscellaneous 28,156              50,835              21,641             - - 
   Total Water 876,053           705,933           688,802           716,555 725,179 
Transfers into Utility Fund - 53,501              5,625                30,251 30,500 
Grand Total Water 876,053           759,434           694,427           746,806 755,679 

Sewer
Sewer Sales 579,399           496,780           571,804           662,911 627,687 
State Assistance 11,103              20,484              22,004             - 22,288 
FRR/Sewer Base 180,559           17,675              - - - 
Tie In Fees 6,100                750 200 - - 
SID Treatment/Testing 126,479           94,001              242,497           90,000 75,000 
Miscellaneous 14,498              8,341                1,406                - - 
   Total Sewer 918,138           638,031           837,911           752,911 724,975 
Transfers into Utility Fund 30,567              - 26,495             36,965 36,965 
Grand Total Sewer 948,706           638,031           864,407           789,876 761,940 

  Total Utility Fund 1,824,759        1,397,465        1,558,833        1,536,682 1,517,619              

Total Revenues 6,566,687        6,514,889        6,602,853        6,537,051 6,746,331              
Total revenues with Transfers 6,627,930        6,568,390        6,636,795        6,629,555 6,867,428              

CITY OF NORTH POLE - Breakout of Revenues

OPERATING REVENUES - GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS

General Fund

Utility Fund

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

20



Budget 2014
Department 2010 2011 2012 2013 Proposed 

Administration 415,230           433,781           453,663           448,628       445,850            
Professional Services - - - -                - 
Police 1,201,762        1,353,923        1,355,276        1,249,084   1,431,809        
Fire 1,516,904        1,645,208        1,715,454        1,616,985   1,699,163        
Public Works 234,484           194,624           269,863           279,740       307,161            
   Total General Fund 3,368,381        3,627,537        3,794,255        3,594,437   3,883,983        

      (percent of operating budget) 71% 75% 74% 71% 74%

Water 226,638           236,677           244,884           265,558       463,569            
Sewer 315,422           321,014           331,835           301,962       333,592            
   Total Utility Fund 542,060           557,690           576,718           567,520       797,161            

      (percent of operating budget) 33% 33% 34% 37% 47%

Total Personnel Costs 3,910,442        4,185,227        4,370,973        4,161,957   4,681,144        
      (percent of operating budget) 61% 64% 64% 63% 67%

Budget Proposed
Department 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Administration 131,141           133,511           156,568           110,802       102,350            
Professional Services 234,656           163,301           263,163           430,419       383,624            
Police 403,502           335,521           330,064           339,050       330,906            
Fire 291,385           288,103           255,050           243,175       252,195            
Public Works 316,660           268,065           336,422           360,082       307,161            
   Total General Fund 1,377,343        1,188,500        1,341,266        1,483,528   1,376,236        

      (percent of operating budget) 29% 25% 26% 29% 26%

Water 701,854           721,454           739,081           481,250       463,569            
Sewer 403,671           416,095           371,328           487,915       425,965            
   Total Utility Fund 1,105,525        1,137,549        1,110,409        969,165       889,534            

      (percent of operating budget) 67% 67% 66% 63% 53%

Total Operating Costs 2,482,867        2,326,049        2,451,675        2,452,693   2,265,770        

Budget Proposed
Department 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Administration 546,371           567,292           610,230           559,430       548,200            
Professional Services 234,656           163,301           263,163           430,419       383,624            
Police 1,605,264        1,689,444        1,685,340        1,588,134   1,762,715        
Fire 1,808,289        1,933,311        1,970,503        1,860,160   1,951,358        
Public Works 551,144           462,689           606,285           639,822       614,321            
   Total General Fund 4,745,724        4,816,037        5,135,521        5,077,965   5,260,219        

Water 928,492           958,131           983,964           746,808       927,138            
Sewer 719,093           737,109           703,163           789,877       759,557            
   Total Utility Fund 1,647,585        1,695,240        1,687,127        1,536,685   1,686,695        

Total Operating Costs 6,393,309        6,511,277        6,822,648        6,614,650   6,946,913        

NON PERSONNEL EXPENSES - GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS

TOTAL OPERATING  EXPENSES - GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS

CITY OF NORTH POLE - Breakout of Personnel & Operating Expenses

PERSONNEL EXPENSES - GENERAL & UTILITY FUNDS

NOTE - These are operating expenses only.  They do not include depreciation expenses and transfer 
expenses. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

21



2011 2012 2013 2013 2014
Fund # General Fund 2010 Actuals Difference 2011 Actuals Difference 2012 Budget Difference Budget Proposed Difference

1 Administration 561,670      598,478      36,808           598,478      644,204      45,726           644,204      559,430      (84,774)        559,430      581,551      22,121 
1 Professional Services 234,656      163,301      (71,354)          163,301      263,163      99,861           263,163      430,419      167,256       430,419      383,624      (46,795)      
1 Police 1,603,300  1,776,661  173,361         1,776,661  1,688,699  (87,962)          1,688,699  1,603,442  (85,257)        1,603,442  1,776,215  172,773     
1 Fire 1,808,289  1,933,311  125,022         1,933,311  1,970,503  37,193           1,970,503  1,860,160  (110,343)      1,860,160  1,951,358  91,198 
1 Public Works 551,144      462,689      (88,456)          462,689      606,285      143,596         606,285      639,822      33,537         639,822      657,061      17,239 

   Total General Fund 4,759,059  4,934,440  175,380         4,934,440  5,172,854  238,414         5,172,854  5,093,273  (79,581)        5,093,273  5,349,809  256,536     

Enterprise Fund
2 Water 1,035,764  973,971      (61,794)          973,971      983,851      9,880             983,851      746,808      (237,043)      746,808      755,679      8,871          

22 Sewer 1,387,372  1,449,149  61,776           1,449,149  1,426,615  (22,534)          1,426,615  789,877      (636,738)      789,877      761,940      (27,937)      
25 Water Reserves -              135,673      135,673         135,673      238,985      103,312         238,985      -              (238,985)      -              337,248      337,248     
27 Sewer Reserves 30,567        227,382      196,815         227,382      213,147      (14,236)          213,147      200,330      (12,817)        200,330      761,940      561,610     

   Total Utilities 2,453,704  2,786,175  332,471         2,786,175  2,862,598  76,423           2,862,598  1,737,015  (1,125,583)  1,737,015  2,616,807  879,792     

Other Funds
5 Building 56,079        47,680        (8,399)            47,680        9,561          (38,119)          9,561          68,000        58,439         68,000        114,500      46,500 

22 AHSO Officer 147,400      95,613        (51,786)          95,613        79,269        (16,345)          79,269        -              (79,269)        -              80,256        80,256 
23 BYRNE - Jag 72,637        43,616        (29,021)          43,616        79,233        35,618           79,233        60,788        (18,445)        60,788        50,000        (10,788)      

CITY OF NORTH POLE - Expenses (variance)

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

22



General Fund Description 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund and is used to account for resources 
traditionally associated with General Government; Administration, Police, Fire and Public 
Works; which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

General Fund Revenues 

Revenues are derived principally from taxation. Proceeds from property tax and sales tax account 
for 75 percent of General Fund revenue. Revenue derived from charges for services include 
fingerprinting fees, ambulance fees, traffic tickets, and other fees. In total, these proceeds account 
for approximately 9.5 percent of General Fund revenues.  

Intergovernmental revenues from the State of Alaska, the Fairbanks North Star Borough 
Ambulance service, and the US Army Corps of Engineers contract, account for 14.5 percent of 
General Fund revenues. These intergovernmental appropriations include revenue sharing, PERS 
on-behalf revenue, FNSB contract fee’s for providing EMS ambulance service, US Army Corps 
of Engineers contract for police protection and some of our smaller hourly reimbursable grants.  

License and permits, fines and forfeitures, interest, prior year citation collections, other 
miscellaneous revenues and intergovernmental transfers account for less than 2 percent of 
General Fund revenues.  

Taxation Breakdown 

The City of North Pole collects taxation revenues through two primary means, property tax and 
sales tax. 

Property tax is collected by the Fairbanks North Star Borough on behalf of the City of North 
Pole per Alaska Statute 29.45.560.  Property tax is calculated using a mill rate or (percentage) of 
the value of the property.  One mill of tax is equal to 1/ of one percent of the value of a property.  
The best way to figure the tax amount of a property is to use the following equation 

Property Value X [.00(Mill rate)] = Tax Amount 

The City of North Pole has a mill rate of 3.5 or 3.5% of the value of your property. 

If your property was worth $100,000 the property tax would be $350 per year for the City of 
North Pole.   

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

23



Property tax revenue is projected to be 19 percent of our general fund revenue in 2014, virtually 
unchanged from 2013.   

Sales tax is collected by the City of North Pole and includes some of the following special taxes, 
Bed tax, Tobacco Tax and Alcohol Tax.  These special taxes are factored at different rates per 
City of North Pole Code 4.08.020.   

General Sales Tax 4%  Maximum tax per transaction $8.00 

Bed Tax 8% No Cap (Same as FBKS and FNSB) 

Alcohol Tax 5% No Cap (Same as FBKS and FNSB) 

Tobacco Tax 8% No Cap (Same as FBKS and FNSB) 

All sales tax is collected monthly or quarterly 

General sales tax revenue is projected to be 56% of General Fund revenue, virtually unchanged 
from 2013.  The following sales taxes are represented showing their percentage of the General 
Fund Revenue. 

General Sales Tax 48.7% (Unchanged over 2013) 

Bed Tax 1.3% ( Down 19% over 2013 Budget) 

Alcohol Tax 4% ( Down 5% over 2013 Budget) 

Tobacco Tax 2% ( up 3% over 2013 Budget) 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

24



GENERAL FUND REVENUE - FUND 01

2013 2014 2014
Line Account 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved % of 

# Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget Budget

1 01-00-00-4002 Property Tax 913,593 959,554 954,545 1,024,930 1,031,500 1,031,500.00 19.3%
2 01-00-00-4003 Ambulance Service 357,639 358,946 365,968 385,000 402,000 402,000.00 7.5%
3 01-00-00-4005 Ambulance Fees - 27,801 49,127 60,000 63,000 63,000.00 1.2%
4 01-00-00-4008 Fire Department Revenue 18,460 36,080 6,911 6,000 7,500 7,500.00 0.1%
5 01-00-00-4014 Police Department Revenue - 11 - - 0.0%
6 01-00-00-4017 Citation Revenue 85,663 58,985 44,353 62,500 50,000 50,000.00 0.9%
7 01-00-00-4018 FingerPrinting 8,226 10,295 11,495 12,000 12,000 12,000.00 0.2%
8 01-00-00-4019 Police Reports 937 6,368 3,015 2,750 2,000 2,000.00 0.0%
9 01-00-00-4021 Citation Revenue  - Prior Year Collect. 59,556 51,680 32,436 48,000 32,000 32,000.00 0.6%

10 01-00-00-4024 Impound Lot Fees - 5,760 36,000 - 0.0%
11 01-00-00-4025 Police Vehicle Revenue 163 383 899 - - 0.0%
12 01-00-00-4045 Made In North Pole 4,000 2,000 2,000.00 0.0%
13 01-00-00-4062 Municipal Assistance 15,128 67,592 82,196 - - 0.0%
14 01-00-00-4140 Shared Taxes 67,145 59,353 56,805 57,000 57,000 57,000.00 1.1%
15 01-00-00-4141 Business License 10,025 15,495 14,830 17,000 16,500 16,500.00 0.3%
16 01-00-00-4142 Liquor License Revenue Sharing 4,200 5,200 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800.00 0.1%
17 01-00-00-4162 State Revenue Sharing 206,334 200,737 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000.00 3.7%
18 01-00-00-4163 Corps of Engineers Contract 68,476 52,307 67,388 80,000 84,000 84,000.00 1.6%
19 01-00-00-4165 PERS Relief 118,698 241,360 253,763 - 263,851 263,851.00 4.9%
20 01-00-00-5000 Sales Tax Revenue 2,502,922 2,452,042               2,463,477               2,594,105 2,603,001 2,603,001.00 48.7%
21 01-00-00-5001 Sales Tax Penalties - - - 0.0%
22 01-00-00-5085 DOT Safety (CVI) 4,220 3,360 3,255 3,500 4,375 4,375.00 0.1%
23 01-00-00-5800 Interest on Deposits 5,121 3,183 2,621 3,000 2,750 2,750.00 0.1%
24 01-00-00-5801 Miscellaneous Revenue 21,687 60,326 30,325 28,000 30,000 30,000.00 0.6%
25 01-00-00-5802 Alchohol Beverage Tax 206,588 193,166 207,515 224,000 212,500 212,500.00 4.0%
26 01-00-00-5809 AHSO (HVE) 13,776 14,173 5,668 11,000 12,900 12,900.00 0.2%
27 01-00-00-5807 DEPT Homeland Security Grant 10,000 10,000.00 0.2%
28 01-00-00-5816 FNSB- Economic Dev. Funds - - - 0.0%
29 01-00-00-5817 Bed Tax 83,938 83,173 85,894 83,000 67,500 67,500.00 1.3%
30 01-00-00-5818 Tobacco Tax 126,556 117,771 121,000 125,000 125,000.00 2.3%
31 01-00-00-5820 DEA Reimbursement 81,133 - - 0.0%
32 01-00-00-5822 IRS Reimbursement 1,667 5,320 - - 0.0%
33 01-00-00-5900 Transfer In From Fund Balance 30,676 - 1,822 10,000 - - 0.0%
34 01-00-00-5901 Transfer In From Fund 10 (Beautification) 1,788 - - 0.0%
35 01-00-00-5901 Transfer in From Fund 24 (SOA Forfeitures) 17,632 17,632.00 0.3%
36 01-00-00-5901 Transfer in From Fund 36 (Impounds) 36,000 36,000.00 0.7%
37 01-00-00-5901 Transfer in From Fund 16 (Fire) 13,500 - - 0.0%

Total 4,803,171 5,170,925               5,077,962               5,092,873 5,349,809 - - - 5,349,809 
5,349,809 

2013 2014
Department % of Budget Approved Budget Department % of Budget Approved Budget

Administration 11% 559,430 Administration 11% 581,551 
Professional Services 8% 430,419 Professional Service 7% 383,624 
Police 31% 1,603,442 Police 33% 1,776,215 
Fire 37% 1,860,160 Fire 36% 1,951,358 
Public Works 13% 639,822 Public Works 12% 657,061 

Total General Fund Expenses 5,093,273    Total General Fund Expenses 5,349,809 
Total General Fund Revenue 5,092,873               General Fund Revenue 5,349,809 

Difference  (revenue over expenses) (400) revenue over expenses 0 

NOTE:  In 2014, the City has budgeted for the 
PERS Relief payments, made by the State, on 
behalf of the City.  While there is no direct 
revenue or expense to the City, we are required 
by GASB to book these amounts.  The revenue 
has been booked into account 01-00-00-4165 
and the expenses have been booked to each 
department PERS Relief account.   In previous 
years, the expense side was booked to the PERS 
expense for each department; this budget 
breaks out that portion of the total PERS 
expense and moves it to the new accounts that 
were set up for this expense. 

NOTE - In 2013 the City Transfered in $10,000 (from fund balance) for a Beautifiaction grant recieved in previous years 
NOTE - In 2014 Impound Lot revenues  have been moved to Impound Lot (Fund 36) and are seen as a transfer in from Fund 36, to better account for cost associated with impounds  

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

25



Mission:   
The Office of the City Clerk provides the professional link between citizens, local governing 
bodies, city administration and agencies of government at all levels.  Administer and conduct 
city elections in accordance with applicable local, state, and federal election laws in the highest 
possible standards.  To preserve public records of the City of North Pole. 

Program Description:   
The City Clerk must adhere to constitutional government and laws of the community and state; 
impart standards of quality and integrity that merit public confidence; and maintain professional 
ethical standards.  The City Clerk is responsible to administrative support to the Council; 
accurate records of proceedings of the governing body; administration of City elections; 
maintaining all records of the City; research and development of ordinances, resolutions, and 
reports; provide public information to citizens of the City; serve as a conduit between the 
Administration and the Council.  The City Clerk is responsible for city elections and knowledge 
of election laws (federal, state and local). 

Objectives: 
• Continue to run the office in an efficient and effective manner providing the public access

to their local government and staying within the fiscal constraints as required by state 
statutes and the city code of ordinances. 

• Conduct efficient and litigation free elections.
• Improve election history information on the City webpage.
• Continue the restoration of permanent and historical paper documents.

Major Long Term Issues and concerns: 
• Upgrade the sound system in the Council Chambers as the current system is old and has

not been upgraded for many years.
• Move confidential records to the new archive room and purchase new file cabinets to

store current data in Administration.
• Implement a document management system for Administration that will eventually

envelop all departments within the City.

FY2013 Accomplishments: 
• Received a grant from the State Legislature to enable the city administration personnel to

develop an efficient, compliant archival system and secure records in the event of a 
disaster as well as expedite retrieval of archived documents.  The City has invested 
$50,000 in basic archival equipment, phase one.  The second phase of the project is to 
acquire the electronic equipment and scanners, supplies, and training necessary to 
implement a document archival system.    

• Started the process for recodification of the North Pole Municipal Code and a legal
review. 

• Conducted Parliamentary and Newly Elected Official training.
• Studied, researched, and implemented an IT improvement and upgrade that would bring

the City of North Pole into compliance.
• Assisted all departments with the bidding process and advertisements.

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

26



• Negotiated health care contract with Alaska USA Insurance and AW Rehn to ensure
affordable health care for employees and the City.

• Purchased a time keeping device for the Council Chambers for Citizen Comments.
• Continue to work on the webpage to ensure that information is kept up to date and to help

with transparency in local government.
• Added a dedicated line in the Council Chambers to help with transmission of elections

and for ease of conference calling during meetings.  Purchased Polycom device from
ACS.

• Conducted City elections free of litigation.

FY2014 New Initiative: 
• Develop and implement an electronic archival system with training for staff and use grant

funding to hire temporary help to achieve goal. 
• Develop and implement a travel policy.
• Begin implementation of an electronic records management program.  Implementation of

e-records management is dependent upon funding.
• Purchase two new ipads each year to keep equipment up to date.

 
 

 

Line-Item Explanations / Admin 
7001 Publication & Advertising.  Cost of publishing agendas, meeting notices, public hearing notices 
and bids in the Fairbanks Daily Newsminer. 
7002  Election Expense.  Annual fee for FNSB to conduct the elections for the City. 

7004  Travel/Administration ( Council).  Travel costs for Mayor and Council to travel to Juneau for 
annual lobbying and Washington DC, attend Alaska Municipal League (AML) annual conference in 
Anchorage and Summer Session in August. 

7009  Council Supplies & Equipment.  Purchase of computers, ipads, and materials needed for the 
council. 

7049  Training.  Travel costs for City Clerk to attend annual Alaska Association of Municipal Clerks) 
AAMC conference and International Institute of Municipal Clerks (IIMC),  Finance Officer, A/R, A/P to 
attend the Caselle Conference (Financial software), and for Finance Officer to attend AGFOA and the 
GFOA conference.  Also includes mileage, hotel and meals.  Included in this is any webinars for 
continuing education credits. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

27



Mission:   
The mission of the Office of Human Resources is to lead the successful development of 
employees and employment relationships through effective hiring, training and related support 
services. 

Program Description:   
The Office of Human Resources provides employee relations, talent management, recruitment, 
hiring, retention, training and the administering of benefits for employees, ensures regulatory and 
statutory compliance, develops policies and procedures and administers the labor relations for 
the City. 

Direct Services 
     Employment and Classification is responsible for : 

• Developing and sustaining a fair, efficient, effective, transparent, and equitable
recruitment, selection, and hiring process. 

• Locating sources of qualified manpower to meet the needs of the City
• Maintaining and administering a fair and objective system for classifying jobs/positions.
• Creating and maintain pay grades for comparable work across the City.
• Administering employee records.

Major Long Term Issues and concerns: 
• Improving talent acquisition and talent management.
• Standardizing, centralizing, memorializing, and implementing necessary policies and

forms.
• City-wide salary survey and assessment.
• Managing healthcare costs, benefits and administration.
• Implementation of electronic solutions for HR Processes.
• Standardizing job descriptions
• Ensuring a functional and user-friendly Human Resources website

FY2013 Accomplishments: 
• Negotiated health care contract with Alaska USA and AW Rehn to ensure affordable

health care for employees and the City. 
• Started implementing the Human Resources module in Caselle to make sure that it is

capturing each employee for better management of records. 
• There were no grievances filed for 2013.

FY2014 New Initiative: 
• Update and standardize policies, forms and job descriptions.
• Develop the Human Resources website to better serve our employees, supervisors and the

public.
• Review and restructure the salary schedules.
• Develop and implement an updated travel policy.
• Leverage technology to provide employees with self-service access to administrative

information and processes.

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

28



2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

1 01-01-00-6000 Salaries Expense 263,876 267,147       274,244           273,265              273,368         273,368 
2 01-01-00-6060 Salaries Expense - Council 12,805          14,950         16,100             18,000                18,000           18,000 
3 01-01-00-6090 Admin Overtime Exp 1,020            295               1,145               750 750                 750 
4 01-01-00-6091 Holiday Pay 182 - - 
5 01-01-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 1,866            1,602           1,778               1,944 1,894              1,894 
6 01-01-00-6098 FICA 652               462               682 1,134 578                 578 
7 01-01-00-6099 Medicare 3,925            4,093           4,378               4,292 3,975              3,975 
8 01-01-00-6100 PERS 61,273          60,349         63,293             64,243                62,286           62,286 
9 01-01-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 65,680          80,507         86,013             81,000                81,000           81,000 

10 01-01-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 4,133            4,375           6,028               4,000 4,000              4,000 
11 01-01-00-6100 Pers Relief 15,299          31,186         33,791             33,351           33,351 
12 01-01-00-7001 Publications & Advertising 23,186          20,469         18,908             21,000                20,000           20,000 
13 01-01-00-7002 Election Expense 4,358            3,879           7,152               4,500 4,500              4,500 
14 01-01-00-7003 Promotion 5,094            7,403           3,688               4,000 4,000              4,000 
15 01-01-00-7004 Travel/Council 13,993          11,641         16,896             9,500 7,000              7,000 
16 01-01-00-7006 Sales Tax Rebates 4,800            4,648           4,800               800 800                 800 
17 01-01-00-7007 Maint. Contracts/Equipment 35,212          41,377         35,665             34,602                23,500           23,500 
18 01-01-00-7009 Council Supplies & Equipment 4,892           1,904               1,800 1,800              1,800 
19 01-01-00-7015 Vehicle Gas 77 1,061           2,674               3,400 2,250              2,250 
20 01-01-00-7016 Vehicle Maintenance 863               - 500                 500 
21 01-01-00-7022 Office Supplies 14,574          9,294           12,506             10,500                10,500           10,500 
22 01-01-00-7029 Admin/Misc. Expenses 13,740          6,135           6,444               6,500 6,000              6,000 
23 01-01-00-7030 Office Equipment -                5,557           3,500 3,000              3,000 
24 01-01-00-7039 Postage/Meter Rental 2,348            6,409           5,054               6,100 6,500              6,500 
25 01-01-00-7041 Bad Debts 5,879            - - 
26 01-01-00-7049 Training/ Classes/Manuals 7,881            9,884           5,876               4,600 12,000           12,000 
27 01-01-00-8055 Arctic Winter Games 15,000             - - 
28 01-01-00-8056 Sled Dog Races 20,000             - - 

TOTAL 561,670       598,478       644,204           559,430 581,551         -                - - 581,551 
581,551 

training and travel combined
note IT cost moved to Professional svc 2014

ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES

NOTE - IN 2014, staff travel has been included in training/ classes/ manuals Acct# 01-01-00-7049 

NOTE - Acct# 01-01-00-7004 (travel / administration) was renamed to (Travel Council) to better represent the cost of Council travel.  

NOTE - in 2014, Maintainance Contracts and Equipments  (01-01-00-7007) was reduced because IT support was consolidated to a new account in Professional Services 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

29



Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Proposed Approved
PERSONNEL COSTS 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014

Salaries - Admin 263,876        267,147        274,244        273,265 273,368 273,368                
Salaries - OT 1,020             295                1,145            750 750 750 
Salaries - Council 12,805          14,950          16,100          18,000 18,000 18,000 
Medicare 3,925             4,093             4,378            4,292 3,975 3,975 
SS 652                462                682                1,134 578 578 
Pers 61,273          60,349          63,293          64,243 62,286 62,286 
Pers - State
Leave Cash Out 4,133             4,375             6,028            4,000 4,000 4,000 
Workman's Comp 1,866             1,602             1,778            1,944 1,894 1,894 
Disability Insurance
Health Insurance 65,680          80,507          86,013          81,000 81,000 81,000 

TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 415,230        433,781        453,663        448,628 445,850 445,850                
      (percent of operating budget) 74% 72% 70% 80% 77% 77%

NON PERSONNEL COSTS 131,141        133,511        156,568        110,802 102,350 102,350                
      (percent of operating budget) 23% 22% 24% 20% 18% 18%

TOTAL BUDGET 561,670        598,478        644,204        559,430 581,551 581,551                

Administration Breakout of Expenses

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

30



Professional Services 

Professional Services accounts are for expenses not directly related to one department and/or the 
operational efficiency of the City as a whole.  Expenses include dispatch fees, State railroad fees, legal 
fees, audit fees, bed tax allocations and transfers to fund balance.   

New items in the Professional Services account include contract IT support.  This line item has been 
included here in an effort to consolidate IT expenses for all departments.  Also new to Professional 
Services are the transfers to the newly created Vehicle Fleet Funds and Capital Projects Fund.   

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

31



2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

1 01-02-00-6104 Insurance 21,364      19,997 20,770         21,500               22,000 22,000 
2 01-02-00-7004 Audit & Accounting 20,702      20,783 25,539         24,790               26,000 26,000 
3 01-02-00-7005 Legal Fees 12,318      4,641          7,122           8,000 7,500 7,500 
4 01-02-00-7012 City Hall Bldg. Maintenance 15,121      1,557          2,000 2,500 2,500 
5 01-02-00-7016 CH Electricity 9,817        9,976          10,588         12,000               12,000 12,000 
6 01-02-00-7017 CH Heating Fuel 13,522      7,997          11,800         12,000               12,000 12,000 
7 01-02-00-7019 Telephone, City Hall 9,528        8,548          10,367         8,750 8,750 8,750 
8 01-02-00-7020 Fuel - Santa Seniors (2,027)          - 
9 01-02-00-7025 Dispatch Services 85,841         94,425               104,000 104,000 

10 01-02-00-7035 Ordinance Codification 180           860             5,464           6,000 5,000 5,000 
11 01-02-00-7042 Citation Court Admin Fees 4,634        3,954          3,902           5,000 3,500 3,500 
12 01-02-00-7043 Citation SOJ Fees 15,225      8,322          3,675           10,000               7,500 7,500 
13 01-02-00-7050 Credit Card User Fees 10,172      3,932          4,615           3,500 4,000 4,000 
14 01-02-00-7055 Preparedness - 2,000 2,000 
15 01-02-00-7071 Website Design & Maintenance 20,775      2,039          2,498           3,000 3,000 3,000 
16 01-02-00-7201 Bed Tax to - Chamber 24,390      21,209 21,903         21,165               17,212 17,212 
17 01-02-00-7203 Bed Tax to - Christmas in Ice 12,195      10,605 10,951         10,583               8,606 8,606 
18 01-02-00-7204 Bed Tax to - Economic Develop. 40,650      35,348 36,505         35,274               28,687 28,687 
19 01-02-00-7205 Bed Tax to - FCVB 4,065        3,535          3,651           3,528 2,869 2,869 
20 01-02-00-7024 AK Railroad Permits Fees 8,000 8,000 8,000 
21 01-02-00-7007 IT contract support 12,500 12,500 
22 01-02-00-7091 Transfer out to Fund 50 (Fire Fleet) 13,975               13,975 13,975 
23 01-02-00-7091 Transfer out to Fund 51 (Police Fleet) 13,975               13,975 13,975 
24 01-02-00-7091 Transfer out to Fund 53 (Public Works Fleet) 9,675 9,675 9,675 
25 01-02-00-7091 Transfer out to Fund 52 (Admin Fleet) 5,375 5,375 5,375 
26 01-02-00-7091 Transfer out to Fund 54 (GG Reserves) 43,000               43,000 43,000 
27 01-02-00-7999 Move to Fund Balance 54,904               - - 

TOTAL 234,656   163,301     263,163       430,419 383,624 - - - 383,624 
383,624 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES EXPENSE

NOTE - in 2013, the Council adopted ordinance 13-11 (Designated funds)  that created  funds for vehicle repacement and capital projects.  These funds are required to be funded with a percentage of property tax. 

NOTE - in 2013,  Alaska Railroad Permit Fees were added to Professional Services 

NOTE - in 2013, IT support was added to Professional Services 

NOTE - in 2013, Transfer to Fund Balance was moved to Professional Services  

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

32



Revised 10/23/2013 

FIRE CHIEF 
Buddy Lane 

A SHIFT 
Captain David Daniell 

Lieutenant Dan Kuhnert 

Engineer Christine Boddy 
Firefighter Justin Williams 

B SHIFT  
Captain Chad Heineken 
Lieutenant Dave Nelson 

Firefighter Zach Raby 
Cody Coffman Firefighter 

C SHIFT 
Captain Kevin Haywood 

Lieutenant Shawn McGilvary 

Engineer Richard Hagen 
Firefighter Jesse Stern 

FF Fred Garza 
RFF Dalton Mitchell 
RFF Casey Hyatt 
RFF Krystal Thibault 

RFF Cody Coffman 
RFF Tanya Stugart 
RFF Vincent Cavallaro 
RFF Bethany Cornett 
RFF Chet Hand 
RFF Kathryne Stalker 
RFF Michael Collins 

FF Angie Taylor  
FF Melissa Evarts 
FF Ben Kaiser 
FF Laura Kaiser 

FF John Chihuly 
FF Stephanie Lukens 
RFF Cameron Groves 
RFF Michael Grohman 
RFF Nick Campiglia 
RFF Martin Carlen  
RFF Paul Byous 
RFF Emily Middleton 

FF Terri Berrie, EMT III 
FF Brittany Lane 
RFF Dante Morgan 
RFF Chris Edsell 

RFF Desire Lucero 
RFF Pam Best 
RFF Kara West 
RFF Chris Terry 
RFF Nicole Linton 
RFF Robin Keesler 
RFF Josh Cooper 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 

Kalen Middleton 
Deputy Chief 

Geoff Coon 

**Life Members** 

Walter Priddy 

Frank Ownby 
Barry Jennings 

Carleta Lewis 
Brett Lewis 

Dr. William Doolittle 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

33



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

34



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

35



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

36



2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

1 01-04-00-6000 Salaries 877,739            894,531              916,386 922,145 932,266 932,266 
2 01-04-00-6030 Dispatch Contract 36,130               36,130                - - - 
3 01-04-00-6032 Ambulance Billing Fees 1,914 3,717 2,500 2,500 2,500 
4 01-04-00-6090 Overtime 36,559               23,164                38,238 35,700 36,000 36,000 
5 01-04-00-6091 Holiday Pay 15,660               11,753                14,764 13,770 15,000 15,000 
6 01-04-00-6092 Overtime - Forestry 9,949 893 - - - 
7 01-04-00-6094 Straight Time - Forestry 658 - - - 
8 01-04-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 60,788               67,157                75,907 94,152 99,660 99,660 
9 01-04-00-6098 FICA 3,530                 4,505 4,764 3,778 5,000 5,000 

10 01-04-00-6099 Medicare 12,455               13,122                13,566 15,399 15,417 15,417 
11 01-04-00-6100 PERS 198,736            294,708              301,852 216,041 216,318 216,318 
12 01-04-00-6102 Health & Disability Insuarnce 193,597            143,143              157,049 247,000 247,000 247,000 
13 01-04-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 15,214               10,988                16,483 20,000 20,000 20,000 
14 01-04-00-6105 Insurance 50,498               47,230                47,498 55,080 55,000 55,000 
15 01-04-00-6106 Unemployement 1,031 - - - 
16 01-04-00-6100 PERS Relief 52,910               101,658              105,062 - 112,502 112,502 
17 01-04-00-7007 Maintenance Contracts 7,541                 3,366 7,401 8,200 8,200 8,200 
18 01-04-00-7008 Fire Training/Education 15,972               18,139                13,132 8,000 12,000 12,000 
19 01-04-00-7009 Equipment Outlay 7,751                 5,159 1,523 - - - 
20 01-04-00-7010 Equipment Maintenance 3,026                 7,388 10,370 6,500 6,500 6,500 
21 01-04-00-7011 Base Station/Radio Mnt. 406 515 1,030 1,500 1,500 1,500 
22 01-04-00-7014 Vehicle Maintenance 11,988               9,815 8,292 9,000 9,000 9,000 
23 01-04-00-7015 Vehicle Gas & Oil 16,219               23,436                22,813 22,000 22,000 22,000 
24 01-04-00-7022 Office Supplies 981 1,395 558 2,900 2,900 2,900 
25 01-04-00-7029 Fire Dept/Miscellaneous 3,830                 3,283 3,493 3,000 3,000 3,000 
26 01-04-00-7030 Building Supplies 2,636                 2,191 3,174 2,600 2,600 2,600 
27 01-04-00-7035 PY Ambulance Fees Return 958 - - - 
28 01-04-00-7039 Postage 258 695 446 650 650 650 
29 01-04-00-7040 Ambulance Supplies 19,335               19,986                15,353 17,500 17,500 17,500 
30 01-04-00-7050 Part Time Labor 49,716               66,517                70,490 49,000 - - 
31 01-04-00-7051 Part Time Labor - Forestry 2,323 - - - 
32 01-04-00-7061 Equipment Lease Payments 35,983               37,681                39,953 46,945 46,945 46,945 
33 01-04-00-7062 Equipment Lease -interest. 10,962               9,263 6,991 - - - 
34 01-04-00-7065 Fire Supplies (Expendables) - 198 - - - 
35 01-04-00-7075 Volunteer Incentive 2,561                 964 1,607 - 1,600 1,600 
36 01-04-00-7085 Prevention/Public Education 2,509                 2,254 2,717 - 2,500 2,500 
37 01-04-00-7095 Employee Health Protection 446 635 1,700 2,000 - - 
38 01-04-00-7099 NFPA Station Uniforms 5,493                 2,319 894 - 2,500 2,500 
39 01-04-01-7011 Fire Dept. Maintenance 3,368                 2,015 3,219 3,000 3,000 3,000 
40 01-04-01-7016 Fire Dept. Electricity 15,251               16,188                17,252 17,000 17,000 17,000 
41 01-04-01-7017 Fire Dept. Heat 13,278               15,466                17,869 15,000 15,000 15,000 
42 01-04-01-7018 Fire Dept. Telephone 13,591               11,965                12,065 9,800 9,800 9,800 
43 01-04-02-7011 Annex Maintenance Expense 1,391                 153 1,500 1,500 1,500 
44 01-04-02-7016 Annex Electricity 2,344                 2,305 3,136 3,000 3,000 3,000 
45 01-04-02-7017 Annex Heat costs 5,010                 5,219 7,510 5,500 5,500 5,500 
46 01-04-03-7016 Dorm Electricity 318 334 228 - 500 500 
47 01-04-03-7017 Dorm Heat costs 2,309                 655 - - - - 

TOTAL 1,808,289         1,933,311          1,970,503                1,860,160 1,951,358 - - - 1,951,358 
1,951,358 

FIRE DEPARTMENT EXPENSE

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

37



Actuals Actuals Actuals Budgeted Proposed Approved 
PERSONNEL COSTS 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014

Salaries 877,739        894,531        916,386        922,145            932,266            932,266               
Salaries - OT 36,559          23,164          38,238          35,700              36,000              36,000                  
Forestry Pay -                 12,931          893                - - - 
Holiday Pay 15,660          11,753          14,764          13,770              15,000              15,000                  
Part Time Employees 49,716          66,517          70,490          49,000              - - 
Unemployment -                 1,031            -                 - - - 
Taxes 15,985          17,627          18,330          19,177              20,417              20,417                  
Pers - State 52,910          101,658        105,062        - 112,502            112,502               
Pers 198,736        294,708        301,852        216,041            216,318            216,318               
Accrued Vacation Pay 15,214          10,988          16,483          20,000              20,000              20,000                  
Workman's Comp 60,788          67,157          75,907          94,152              99,660              99,660                  
Health Insurance 193,597        143,143        157,049        247,000            247,000            247,000               

TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 1,516,904    1,645,208    1,715,454    1,616,985        1,699,163        1,699,163            
      (percent of operating budget) 84% 85% 87% 87% 87% 87%

NON PERSONNEL COSTS 291,385        288,103        255,050        243,175            252,195            252,195               
      (percent of operating budget) 16% 15% 13% 13% 13% 13%

TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET 1,808,289    1,933,311    1,970,503    1,860,160        1,951,358        1,951,358            

Fire Department Breakout of Expenses

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

38



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

39



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

40



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

41



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

42



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

43



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

44



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

45



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

46



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

47



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

48



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

49



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

50



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

51



City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

52



2013 2014 2014
2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved 

Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

01-03-00-6000 Salaries 728,713              737,745              738,161       774,155             830,215 830,215 
01-03-00-6019 Uniform Expense 3,235 5,078 5,736            6,000                 6,000 6,000 
01-03-00-6020 Investigative Expense 3,721 2,220 2,583            7,000                 7,000 7,000 
01-03-00-6022 Training Overtime 1,011 6,512 3,929            6,000                 6,000 6,000 
01-03-00-6030 Dispatch Contract 36,130                36,130                - - 
01-03-00-6090 Overtime 15,289                18,795                19,550         29,000               29,000 29,000 
01-03-00-6091 Holiday Pay 4,662 8,341 9,574            7,500                 7,500 7,500 
01-03-00-6095 Grant Overtime - ASTEP 6,804 13,522                12,517         11,808               10,000 10,000 
01-03-00-6096 Grant Overtime - CVI 5,132 2,320 1,383            3,500                 3,500 3,500 
01-03-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 26,598                24,138                26,543         36,195               40,556 40,556 
01-03-00-6098 FICA - 19 50 51 - - 
01-03-00-6099 Medicare 10,591                7,984 11,130         12,151               12,400 12,400 
01-03-00-6100 PERS 183,395              186,701              183,095       183,032             194,167 194,167 
01-03-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 170,155              225,777              231,405       195,000             205,000 205,000 
01-03-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 4,119 25,818                18,995         6,000                 6,000 6,000 
01-03-00-6105 Insurance 122,359              98,383                99,343         125,000             125,000 125,000 
01-03-00-6100 PERS Relief 43,332                96,787                99,345         - 100,971 100,971 
01-03-00-6303 Salary-Police Officer - - - - - 
01-03-00-6106 Unemployment 5,550 2,960            - - 
01-03-00-7001 Subscriptions & Publications - 437 1,513            750 1,000 1,000 
01-03-00-7007 Maintenance Contracts 3,142 3,462 2,559            3,500                 3,500 3,500 
01-03-00-7008 Police Training 11,532                12,442                13,781         18,000               12,000 12,000 
01-03-00-7009 Equipment Outlay 14,271                13,537                9,033            13,100               10,856 10,856 
01-03-00-7010 Equipment Maintenance 4,647 7,056 3,087            5,500                 5,500 5,500 
01-03-00-7011 Building Maintenance 6,408 3,510 8,308            6,500                 5,350 5,350 
01-03-00-7014 Vehicle Maintenance 7,957 10,834                16,640         19,000               21,000 21,000 
01-03-00-7015 Vehicle Gas & Oil 41,278                46,520                52,595         46,500               46,500 46,500 
01-03-00-7016  Electricity 18,159                22,898                17,987         18,000               19,000 19,000 
01-03-00-7017 Heating Fuel 4,901 9,711 12,254         14,000               14,000 14,000 
01-03-00-7018 Telephone 21,685                19,339                19,281         21,500               19,500 19,500 
01-03-00-7022 Office Supplies 4,312 1,586 4,867            5,000                 5,000 5,000 
01-03-00-7028 Operational Supplies 4,002 3,813 3,773            5,000                 5,000 5,000 
01-03-00-7029 Police/Miscellaneous 15,156                2,049 5,193            5,000                 5,000 5,000 
01-03-00-7031 Recruitment 2,521 1,797 2,494            3,950                 3,850 3,850 
01-03-00-7039 Postage 466 990 925               1,000                 1,100 1,100 
01-03-00-7055 DEA Reimbursable Expenses 81,133                - - - 
01-03-00-7061 Equipment Lease Payments 75,351                29,779                46,076         14,250               14,250 14,250 
01-03-00-7062 Equipment Lease -interest. 2,268 3,949 2,036            500 500 500 
01-03-00-7091 Transfer out to Fund 51 (Police Fleet) - -                - - 

TOTAL 1,603,300          1,776,661          1,688,699    1,603,442         1,776,215 -     -     -   1,776,215 

POLICE DEPARTMENT EXPENSES

 -   In 2011, the City receieved $81,133 from the DEA to purchase equipment on their behalf.  This is a one-time occurance.  The  revenue is under General Fund Revenues , the expense is listed above in 01-03-00-7055. 

 - In the past the wages/ benifits for the JAG and AHSO officers have been budgeted in the Police Department.  In 2011, these positions are being budgeted in Funds 22 and 23.   

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

53



Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Proposed Approved
PERSONNEL COSTS 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014

Salaries 728,713          737,745        738,161             774,155 830,215              830,215               
Salaries  - OT 16,300            25,307          23,479               35,000 35,000                35,000 
Holiday Pay 4,662               8,341            9,574 7,500 7,500 7,500 
Grant Overtime 13,899            15,308          13,500               - - - 
Taxes 10,591            8,002            11,180               12,202 12,400                12,400 
Pers 183,395          186,701        183,095             183,032 194,167              194,167               
Pers  - State 43,332            96,787          99,345               - 100,971              100,971               
Leave Cash Out 4,119               25,818          18,995               6,000 6,000 6,000 
Workman's Comp 26,598            24,138          26,543               36,195 40,556                40,556 
Health and Disability Insurance 170,155          225,777        231,405             195,000 205,000              205,000               

TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 1,201,762       1,353,923    1,355,276          1,249,084               1,431,809           1,431,809           
      (percent of operating budget) 75% 76% 80% 78% 81% 81%

NON PERSONNEL COSTS 403,502          335,521        330,064             339,050 330,906              330,906               
      (percent of operating budget) 25% 19% 20% 21% 19% 19%

DEA Reimbursable Expenses - 81,133          - - - - 

TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET 1,603,300       1,776,661    1,688,699          1,603,442               1,776,215           1,776,215           

Police Department Breakout of Expense 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

54



Public Works Department 

Most North Pole residents and visitors daily experience the works of the Public Works 
Department. Public Works focus on two areas that are mutually supportive. One of Public 
Works’ roles is maintaining buildings, grounds and roads the other area where the Department 
focuses its efforts is working to improve the quality of life in the City.  

If you live or come into the City, it is hard to avoid things touched by Public Works. The 
Department maintains the over 18 miles of City-owned roads. Routine maintenance functions 
include snow plowing, graveling, sweeping, and road patching and paving. Public Works 
performs some of these functions directly and uses private contracts for others. Public Works 
does not have the equipment or staffing to plow the City’s roads or to sweep the tons gravel 
spread during the winter. Public Works does spread gravel on our icy roads and does small road 
patches. A private asphalt contractor makes any major road repairs. Private contractors perform 
all major road-paving projects. Road paving projects are typically paid for with state and/or 
federal funds channeled through the Fairbanks Metropolitan Area Transportation System 
(FMATS) with a 9.03% cash match from the City. A function Public Works is adding to its 
workload is striping City roads and parking lots. 

In the past several years, Public Works has expanded its efforts to make the City a more 
attractive place to live and visit. An ongoing effort of Public Works is beautification along the 
City’s main street—Santa Claus Lane. Santa Claus Lane is a state-owned road. The state plows, 
sweeps and performs major maintenance on the road, but the state does not have the resources 
for beautification. Public Works efforts at beautification on Santa Claus lane include landscaping 
the roundabouts and road right-of-way, installing benches and planters and sweeping the 
sidewalks of gravel. In the winter, Public Works installs Christmas tree light displays in the 
roundabouts and makes a priority of plowing the Santa Claus Lane sidewalks. In 2014 and 
beyond, Public Works has plans to expand beautification on Badger Road to the City limits. This 
expansion will mirror beautification efforts on Santa Claus Lane. Plans also include landscaping 
the Richardson Highway interchange ramps. The goal is to make our main street something 
residents can be proud and to make a positive first impression on visitors. 

Public Works is committed to making the City more pedestrian and bicycle friendly. Besides 
plowing snow from the Santa Claus Lane sidewalks, Public Works also plows the other 
pedestrian and bicycle paths throughout the City. In 2014, DOT plans to build the pedestrian 
path along Saint Nicholas Drive from Santa Claus Lane to Busby Road. This will add almost two 
more miles of sidewalk for Public Works to maintain. In September 2013, Public Works installed 
six radar speed signs, two each on Homestead Road,  Avenue and North Pole High School 
Boulevard. Public Works hopes to install two additional radar signs on Perimeter Drive in 2014. 
Other roads will also be considered for traffic calming options to promote public safety. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

55



In 2014, some of Public Works’ beautification plans and efforts to improve the quality of life in 
North Pole include: 

• Construction of a 20 exercise station, two-mile exercise trail
• Landscaping and tourist attractions around City Hall
• Dog park
• Hanging flower baskets along  Avenue
• Road striping
• Richardson Highway-Santa Claus Lane/Badger Road interchange beautification
• Saint Nicholas Drive sidewalk construction (DOT project)
• Repave West  Avenue, East  Avenue, East  Avenue, section of Davis Road, Owens

Street, Manley Street and Blanket Boulevard (FMATS Preventive Maintenance Project)

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

56



2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actuals Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

1 01-08-00-6000 Salaries 146,913                99,702               127,153            135,139          139,562            139,562 
2 01-08-00-6003 Leave Cash Out - - - - 
3 01-08-00-6090 Overtime 4,402 2,239                 4,863                 5,000              5,000                 5,000 
4 01-08-00-6091 Holiday Pay - 311 500                  500 500 
5 01-08-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 4,838 3,761                 7,789                 11,612            14,831              14,831 
6 01-08-00-6098 FICA 651 1,739                 2,329                 2,798              2,616                 2,616 
7 01-08-00-6099 Medicare 1,121 1,007                 2,451                 2,750              2,712                 2,712 
8 01-08-00-6100 PERS 34,591 22,815               29,155               30,941            31,913              31,913 
9 01-08-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 21,000 16,918               40,294               42,000            45,000              45,000 

10 01-08-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 2,220 3,901                 1,154                 4,000              3,000                 3,000 
11 01-08-00-6105 Insurance 13,661 11,966               13,242               14,500            15,000              15,000 
12 01-08-00-6xxx PERS Relief 7,157 11,729               15,565               17,027              17,027 
13 01-08-00-7000 Summer Hire 11,591 30,502               39,110               45,000            40,000              40,000 
14 01-08-00-7029 Unemployment summer hire 5,000                 5,000 
15 01-08-00-7001 Parks/Trails/Grounds Supplies 4,067 5,095                 5,972                 6,500              15,600              15,600 
16 01-08-00-7008 Training - 213 3,366                 2,000              2,000                 2,000 
17 01-08-00-7009 Equipment Outlay 1,256 1,487                 9,964                 20,000            15,000              15,000 
18 01-08-00-7011 Building Maintenance 1,360 10,345               19,208               10,000            8,000                 8,000 
19 01-08-00-7012 Street Maintenance 182,464                81,499               66,758               101,582          50,000              50,000 
20 01-08-00-7013 Street Lights Maintenance 3,070 6,520                 6,606                 5,000              5,000                 5,000 
21 01-08-00-7014 Vehicle Maintenance 836 1,270                 8,998                 8,000              12,000              12,000 
22 01-08-00-7015 Vehicle Gas & Oil 5,475 5,165                 8,379                 10,000            10,000              10,000 
23 01-08-00-7016 Electricity 4,434 5,567                 5,551                 7,000              6,000                 6,000 
24 01-08-00-7017 Heating Fuel 10,695 13,680               15,617               14,500            16,500              16,500 
25 01-08-00-7018 Telephone, Public Works 1,308 1,095                 2,578                 3,000              3,500                 3,500 
26 01-08-00-7020 Snow Removal 25,963 47,100               49,470               50,000            54,000              54,000 
27 01-08-00-7024 ARRC Permits 200 - - 
28 01-08-00-7029 Public Works Misc 10,129 6,290                 2,121                 5,000              4,500                 4,500 
29 01-08-00-7031 FMATS Match Participation 7,500 32,006               63,384               60,000            60,000              60,000 
30 01-08-00-7032 Electricity -Street lights 39,441 35,019               35,582               25,000            20,000              20,000 
31 01-08-00-7033 Christmas Decorations 5,000 3,548                 2,678                 3,000              2,000                 2,000 
32 01-08-00-7035 Backhoe (1/3 of expense) - 33,000              33,000 
33 01-08-00-7034 Beautification 13,316               15,000            17,800              17,800 
34 01-08-00-7092 Transfer Out 3,631                 - - 

TOTAL 551,144               462,689            606,285            639,822          657,061            - - - 657,061 
657,061 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT EXPENSE

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

57



Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Proposed Approved
PERSONNEL COSTS 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014

Salaries 146,913            99,702              127,153              135,139             139,562               139,562 
Salaries - OT 4,402 2,239                4,863 5,000 5,000 5,000 
Holiday Pay - 311 - 500 500 500 
Part Time Employees 11,591              30,502              39,110 45,000               40,000 40,000 
Taxes 1,773 2,745                4,780 5,548 5,328 5,328 
Pers 34,591              22,815              29,155 30,941               31,913 31,913 
PERS - State 7,157 11,729              15,565 - 17,027 17,027 
Leave Cash Out 2,220 3,901                1,154 4,000 3,000 3,000 
Workman's Comp 4,838 3,761                7,789 11,612               14,831 14,831 
Unemployment - - - - 5,000 5,000 
Health Insurance 21,000              16,918              40,294 42,000               45,000 45,000 

TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 234,484            194,624           269,863              279,740             307,161               307,161 
      (percent of operating budget) 43% 42% 45% 44% 47% 47%

NON PERSONNEL COSTS 316,660            268,065           336,422              360,082             349,900               349,900 
      (percent of operating budget) 57% 58% 55% 56% 53% 53%

TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET 551,144            462,689           606,285              639,822             657,061               657,061 

Public Works Department Breakout of Expenses

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

58



Utility Department 

Water System 

The North Pole Utility water system provides safe, sanitary potable water and fire protection in 
compliance with State of Alaska Drinking Water Standards to approximately three quarters of 
the City. The Utility treats the water to remove iron, but does not chlorinate or add fluoride to the 
water as part of the treatment process. On average, the Utility produces over 150,000 gallons per 
day (gpd) of water. The two new drinking water wells, installed by Flint Hills Resources and 
gifted to the City in 2011, each well has the capacity to produce up to 1 million gpd. Recent 
upgrades to the water treatment plant’s pumps and filters enable the Utility to produce up to 
approximately 650,000 gpd of potable water. In 2010 with a federal economic stimulus award, 
the Utility upgraded all the pumps and electronic controls in the water treatment plant that pump 
water into the distribution system. The Utility circulates and heats the water in the distribution 
system to prevent freezing in winter and circulates the water in summer to keep it fresh. 

In 2010, the Utility commissioned an engineering analysis and design project to upgrade the 
water system. The project was possible with the assistance of grants from the US Department of 
Agriculture-Rural Development (USDA-RD) and Alaska Department of Environmental 
Conservation (ADEC). The Utility expects delivery of the results of this analysis in 2014. 
Recommendations under consideration as part of the engineering analysis include increasing the 
water storage capacity; upgrading the treatment plant’s emergency generator and emergency fire 
pump; reconfiguring the flow of water through the system to reduce system operating pressure; 
and installating emergency generators at the Utility’s three branch pump stations.  

A looming issue for the Utility is aging steel water mains. The Utility installed these mains in the 
early 1970s. To date these mains have been performing adequately; however, other communities 
have experienced failures of steel water mains due to corrosion. The steel water mains are 
located mostly in the oldest parts of the City. The only way to address this problem is to remove 
the steel water mains and replace them with ductile iron mains. Installing new water mains could 
cost in excess of $5 million because you not only must replace the mains, but all the streets 
where the mains and the customer service lines are buried must be excavated and roads replaced.  

Water System Statistics 
• Number of customers
 Residential: 470
 Senior: 47
 Multi-family: 70
 Commercial & industrial: 97

• Pumping capacity of each City drinking water well: 1 million gpd
• Average gallons of potable water produced per day: 150,000
• Reservoir water holding capacity: 850,000
• Three remote water pump stations
• Water mains: 127,065 feet/24.1 miles
 Steel water mains: 19,657 feet/3.7 miles
 Ductile iron mains: 107,408 feet/24.1 miles

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

59



Wastewater System 

The City treats an average volume of 250,000 gpd of wastewater. The utility uses a “passive 
system” to treat wastewater—water passes through a series of four lagoons where biological 
activity and settling treat the water to ADEC standards. After passing thorough the treatment 
lagoons, the Utility does add chlorine to kill coliform bacteria then adds a second compound to 
remove the chlorine. The Utility discharges the treated wastewater to the Tanana River under a 
permit from ADEC. A serious development occurred in mid-October—for the second time in 18 
months, the flow of the Tanana River channel where the Utility discharges treated wastewater 
has run dry. Correction of this problem could be expensive and a priority mandate of ADEC. 

The completion of a sewer main and manhole rehabilitation project in October is expected to 
significantly reduce the volume of wastewater the Utility treats. Prior to the project, the Utility 
estimated as much as 25% of the wastewater flow came from ground water leaking into the 
system. An ADEC grant and loan paid the approximate $2.5 million up-front costs of the project. 

Like the water system, the Utility commissioned an engineering analysis and design project to 
upgrade the wastewater treatment system. The project was possible with assistance of grants 
from USDA-RD and ADEC. The wastewater treatment analysis and design is nearing 
completion. The Utility hopes to release a request for bids in fall 2013 or early 2014 to begin 
renovations at the treatment works in summer 2014. Planned renovations include replacement of 
aging piping and the failing lift station in the plant; upgrading the aeration system; replacing the 
under-sized emergency generator; installing a system to pre-screen wastewater; and extension of 
the building to house the modifications. 

The Utility discharges treated wastewater to the Tanana River under an Alaska Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (APDES) permit. The Utility’s permit was renewed in 2008. Part 
of this permit included responsibility for the Utility to issue permits to the industries that 
discharge wastewater to the Utility. The Utility’s APDES permit was scheduled to be renewed in 
June 2013, but instead ADEC administratively extended the permit indefinitely. The loss of flow 
in the channel of the Tanana River where the Utility discharges treated wastewater is likely to 
complicate issuing the Utility a new APDES permit.  

In 2013, the Utility progressed on obtaining the land immediately south of the WWTP lagoons 
for future expansion. The land is managed by the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) on 
behalf of the School Trust. DNR is mandated to sell School Trust Land for fair market value. 
Based upon a comparative appraisal, the land was valued at $115,400. The Utility initiated the 
process to purchase the land. Options open to the Utility are an outright purchase or to finance 
the purchase for up to 20 years. Financing the purchase would require a public vote. Purchase of 
the land could be especially critical as a site to provide an alternative treatment option to resolve 
the loss of flow in the channel of the Tanana River where the Utility discharges treated 
wastewater. 

Wastewater System Statistics 
• Number of customers

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

60



 Residential: 363
 Senior: 47
 Multi-family: 68
 Commercial & industrial: 90

• Permitted daily discharge from treatment plant: 500,000 gpd
• Average gallons of wastewater discharged per day: 250,000 gpd
• Four treatment lagoons holding capacity: 10,000,000 gal
• 13 active sewer lift stations and 4 moth-balled lift stations
• Sewer mains: 74,000 feet/14 miles
 Sewer mains by material

∗ Ductile iron: 62,000 feet/11.8 miles
∗ Techite: 9,000 feet/1.7 miles
∗ HDPE: 2,200 feet/0.4 miles

 Sewer mains by function
∗ Gravity flow: 54,000 feet/10 miles
∗ force mains: 20,000 feet/3.8 miles

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

61



Revenues 755,679       Revenues 761,940             Revenues 1,517,619          

Expenses 755,679       Expenses 761,940             Expenses 1,517,619          

Difference 0 Difference 0 Difference (0) 

WATER / SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND - Fund 02 - Water-10 & Sewer-12

SEWER - 12-12WATER - 12-10 TOTAL WATER & SEWER

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

62



   Utility Department Water Revenue

2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

1 02-10-00-4165 PERS Relief 8,374               16,481 17,518     - 20,326 20,326 
2 02-10-00-5000 Water Utility Revenue 642,159           610,467 629,529  701,554 700,853 700,853 
3 02-10-00-5800 Interest on Deposits - - -           - - 
4 02-10-00-5801 Miscellaneous Revenue 23,261             48,545 6,274       - - 
5 02-10-00-5802 Reimburseable Water Breaks 4,896               2,290 15,367     - - 
6 02-10-00-5810 Bulk Water Sales Revenue - 800 -           - - 
7 02-10-00-5815 Tie-in Fees 19,900             2,250 200          - - 
8 02-10-00-5820 Interfund Trans.from General - - -           - - 
9 02-10-00-5825 Water FRR  Residential/Com'l 43,308             5,470 -           - - 

10 02-10-00-5830 Water Base 64,889             5,919 -           - - 
11 02-10-00-5835 Lab Testing 69,267             13,711 19,914     15,001           4,000 4,000 
12 02-10-00-5901 Transfer In - FRR Water 53,501 5,625       30,251           30,500 30,500 

TOTAL 876,053           759,434 694,427  746,806 755,679 - - - 755,679 
755,679 

NOTE - In 2011, Water FRR Residential and Water Base Revenues were transferred to Fund 25 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

63



UTILITY DEPARTMENT WATER EXPENSE

2013 2014 2014

Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved 
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

1 02-10-00-6000 Salaries 145,926       142,375      147,208       163,435              166,603 166,603 
2 02-10-00-6090 Overtime 1,266            3,725           2,344           4,000 4,000 4,000 
3 02-10-00-6091 Holiday Pay -                -               - - - 
4 02-10-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 5,095            4,600           4,928           6,269 8,581 8,581 
5 02-10-00-6098 Fica 9 10 15 15 
6 02-10-00-6099 Medicare 2,060            2,157           2,197           2,508 2,553 2,553 
7 02-10-00-6100 PERS 40,716         48,327 50,330         36,836                37,532 37,532 
8 02-10-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 25,900         31,169 34,354         47,000                47,000 47,000 
9 02-10-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 5,676            4,323           3,514           5,500 5,500 5,500 

10 02-10-00-6105 Insurance 19,148         17,017 19,288         22,000                25,000 25,000 
11 02-10-00-6106 Unemployment 1,998           555              - - - 
12 02-10-00-61xx PERS Relief 20,326 20,326 
13 02-10-00-6500 Interest Expense ADWF 7,956            5,564           5,625           5,250 5,250 5,250 
14 02-10-00-7001 Publications & Advertising 150               371              667              3,000 3,000 3,000 
15 02-10-00-7003 Billing Service -               1,621           3,000 3,000 3,000 
16 02-10-00-7004 Audit/Accounting Fees 9,833            10,039 9,216           9,000 9,000 9,000 
17 02-10-00-7005 Legal Fees 5,737            2,591           2,726           3,000 5,000 5,000 
18 02-10-00-7006 Professional Services (26)               2,500 2,500 2,500 
19 02-10-00-7007 Safety Equipment -                235              945              2,500 2,500 2,500 
20 02-10-00-7009 Equipment Outlay/Repair 67,771         32,459 35,148         30,000                26,400 26,400 
21 02-10-00-7011 System Supplies 8,469            3,604           33,074         10,000                20,000 20,000 
22 02-10-00-7012 Water Treatment Chemicals 15,455         7,152           7,319           15,000                15,000 15,000 
23 02-10-00-7014 Vehicle Maintenance 1,832            4,582           1,124           5,000 3,000 3,000 
24 02-10-00-7015 Vehicle Gas/oil 3,839            5,343           7,178           5,500 5,500 5,500 
25 02-10-00-7019 Laboratory 52,618         22,029 11,340         15,000                10,000 10,000 
26 02-10-00-7021 Liability Insurance 12,559         -               - - 
27 02-10-00-7022 Office Supplies 899               2,098           3,905           5,000 3,000 3,000 
28 02-10-00-7029 Miscellaneous 3,372            5,989           3,634           2,500 2,000 2,000 
29 02-10-00-7039 Postage 1,931            3,572           1,234           3,000 3,000 3,000 
30 02-10-00-7041 Bad Debt Expense 5,022            2,906           260              5,000 2,000 2,000 
31 02-10-00-7045 Training -               321              2,500 2,500 2,500 
32 02-10-00-7050 Debt Retirement-AK.Drinking Water -                -               25,000                25,000 25,000 
33 02-10-00-7051 Credit Card User Fees 5,933           6,643           5,000 6,000 6,000 
34 02-10-00-7060 Accumulated  Annual Leave (924)              2,308           (113)             - - - 
35 02-10-00-7092 Transfer Out - FRR 43,308         5,470           - - 
36 02-10-00-7094 Transfer Out - Water Base 64,889         5,919           - - - 
37 02-10-00-7097 Transfer Out - Capital Projects 2,144           - - 
38 02-10-00-7400 Deferred Maintenance Expense 38,012         4,218           30,000                25,000 25,000 
39 02-10-00-7500 Utility Truck Replacement -                -               - - 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

64



UTILITY DEPARTMENT WATER EXPENSE

2013 2014 2014

Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved 
# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

40 02-10-00-7802 Reimburseable Water Breaks -                -               1,020           - - 
41 02-10-00-7905 Energy Reserve 25,000                15,000 15,000 
42 02-10-00-8100 Water - Depreciation Expense 263,116       371,492      389,612       - - 
43 02-10-04-7016 Electricity WTP 67,620         52,007 48,803         55,000                50,000 50,000 
44 02-10-04-7017 Heating Fuel WWTP 56,902         81,932 53,466         75,000                70,000 70,000 
45 02-10-04-7018 Telephone WTP 6,295            9,687           8,458           2,000 4,000 4,000 
46 02-10-04-7020 Building Maintenance WTP 224               122              2,000 4,000 4,000 
47 02-10-06-7016 Electricity - Highway Park 20,322         21,140 21,719         25,000                25,000 25,000 
48 02-10-06-7017 Heating Fuel - Highway Park 4,364            3,809           5,463           6,000 5,000 5,000 
49 02-10-06-7018 Telephone - Hiway Park 401               406              403              500 500 500 
50 02-10-06-7020 Building Maintenance - Highway Park -                -               500 1,000 1,000 
51 02-10-08-7016 Electricity - 8th Avenue 8,332            8,896           10,352         11,500                12,000 12,000 
52 02-10-08-7017 Heating Fuel - 8th Avenue 2,906            3,813           3,289           4,000 4,000 4,000 
53 02-10-08-7020 Building Maintenance - 8th Avenue 220               243              765              500 1,000 1,000 
54 02-10-10-7016 Electricity - Stillmeyer 14,089         14,740 14,881         21,500                21,500 21,500 
55 02-10-10-7017 Heating Fuel - Stillmeyer 2,000            2,039           3,574           5,000 3,000 3,000 
56 02-10-10-7018 Telephone - Stillmeyer 458               472              459              500 500 500 
57 02-10-10-7020 Building Maintenance - Stillmeyer -                -               500 1,000 1,000 
58 02-10-11-7016 Electricity - Well House 9,190           12,084         10,500                10,500 10,500 
59 02-10-11-7017 Heating Fuel - Well House 1,871           6,606           7,500 7,500 7,500 
60 02-10-11-7018 Telephone - Well House 1,920           2,942           4,000 1,000 1,000 
61 02-10-00-7999 Move to Retained Earnings -                -               - 319 319 
62 02-10-12-7016 Electricity - Utility Shop 3,500 3,500 3,500 
63 02-10-12-7017 Heating Fuel - Utility Shop 3,247           7,500 5,000 5,000 
64 01-10-12-7018 Telephone SCDA 8,000 8,000 
65 02-10-12-7018 Telephone - Utility Shop 115              5,000 1,000 1,000 
66 02-10-12-7031 Snow Removal 3,600 3,600 
67 02-10-12-7020 Building Maintainance - Utility Shop 2,000 2,000 

TOTAL 1,035,764    973,971      983,851      746,808 755,679 - - - 755,679 
755,679 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

65



Utility Department Water Breakout of Expenses

Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Proposed Approved 
PERSONNEL COST 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014

Salaries 145,926     142,375    147,208   163,435   166,603   166,603  
Salaries - OT 1,266  3,725     2,344    4,000    4,000  4,000     
Holiday Pay -   -   -  -  -  -  
Taxes 2,060   2,157     2,206    2,518    2,568  2,568     
Pers 40,716    48,327   50,330  36,836  37,532   37,532    
PERS - State -   -   -  -  20,326   20,326    
Leave Cash Out 5,676  4,323     3,514    5,500    5,500  5,500    
Workman's Comp 5,095  4,600     4,928    6,269    8,581  8,581    
Health Insurance 25,900    31,169   34,354     47,000     47,000   47,000  

TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 226,638   236,677    244,884  265,558  292,110    292,110  
   (percent of operating budget) 22% 24% 25% 36% 39% 39%

NON PERSONNEL COSTS 701,854   721,454    739,081  481,250  463,569    463,569  
   (percent of operating budget) 68% 74% 75% 64% 61% 61%

TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET 1,035,764   973,971    983,851  746,808  755,679   755,679  

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE

TRANSFERS OUT 108,197    13,533  -  -  -  -   

TOTAL BUDGET 1,036,689   971,663    983,964               746,808               755,679              755,679           

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

66



Utility Department Water Reserve (Fund 25)

2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved

# Account Number REVENUES Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

1 25-10-00-5825 FRR Residential Water 43,308        65,235 63,818    63,000             81,120 81,120 
2 25-10-00-5830 Water Base 64,889        70,438 71,512    81,120             106,128 106,128 
3 25-10-00-5900 Transfer in from Retained Earnings 150,000 150,000 

TOTAL 108,197      135,673             135,330  144,120          337,248 337,248 
337,248 

EXPENSES
4 25-10-00-7091 Transfer out Fund 3 (Capital Projects) 289,248 289,248 
5 25-10-00-7091 Transfer out Fund 55 (Utility Fleet) 48,000 48,000 
6 25-10-00-7092 Transfer Out - FRR -               - 104,180  - - 
7 25-10-00-7093 Transfer Out - Water Base 134,805  - - 
8 25-10-00-7999 Transfer To Retained Earnings - - 

TOTAL -               - 238,985  - 337,248 -                 -               - 337,248 
337,248 

Utility Department Water Reserves (Fund 25) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 243,762             

ATTENTION:  This is a new fund, set up in 2010, to account for the revenues that are received from the FRR and Water Base portions of the Water bills. 

NOTE - Expenses to this fund will be for the repair and replacement of water utility infrastructure.  These expenses will need to have the approval of council. 

NOTE - Expenses to this fund  will also be for the 10% pay back on the principal and the related interest on various ADEC water loans. 

NOTE - 2010 and 2011 Budget Actuals vary slightly from financials:  In the budget, amounts in the Transfer From accounts have been combined with the normal revenue accounts 
  25-10-00-5901 - has been combined with 25-10-00-5825 

   25-10-00-5902 - has been combined with 25-10-00-5830 
This makes it easier to compare revenues year to year. 

 (in 2010 and early 2011, we were tranferring the revenue, each month from the Water Deparment.  In mid-2011, we set up the water/sewer billings to automatically post these revenues to 
this fund.) 

NOTE - in 2014, the City began transfering to Utility Fleet (Fund 55) at a 50% match rate from Fund 25 (water reserves) and Fund 27 (Sewer reserves) 

NOTE - In 2014, we also began including the YTD account Balance with the published budget 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

67



Utility Department Sewer Revenue

2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

1 02-12-00-4165 PERS Relief 11,103         20,484         22,004           - 22,288 22,288 
2 02-12-00-5000 Sewer Utility Revenue 579,399       496,780       571,804         662,911 627,687 627,687 
3 02-12-00-5002 Flint Hills Lab Testing -                - - - 
4 02-12-00-5005 SID Pretreatment Program -                -                196,502         15,000              75,000 75,000 
5 02-12-00-5010 Construction Permits 39,873           - - - 
6 02-12-00-5800 Interest on Deposits 393               309               248                 - - - 
7 02-12-00-5801 Miscellaneous Revenue 14,106         8,032            1,158             - - - 
8 02-12-00-5802 Industrial SID Lab Tests 126,479       94,001         45,995           75,000              - - 
9 02-12-00-5805 Facility Repair & Replacement 79,548         7,204            - - - 

10 02-12-00-5815 Tie-In Fees 6,100            750               200                 - - - 
11 02-12-00-5820 Interfund Trans.from General -                - - - 
12 02-12-00-5825 Sewer FRR Com'l & Residential 40,662         5,007            - - - 
13 02-12-00-5830 Sewer Base 60,348         5,464            - - - 
14 02-12-00-5900 Transfer In 30,567         26,495           36,965              36,965 36,965 

TOTAL 948,706       638,031       904,280         789,876 761,940 - - - 761,940 
761,940 

NOTE - in 2014, SID Lab Test account# (02-12-00-5802) was consolidated with the SID Pretreatment Program account# (02-12-00-5005) 

NOTE - In 2011, Sewer FRR and Sewer Base revenues were transfered to Fund 27 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

68



2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

1 02-12-00-6000 Salaries 186,593               177,617              185,096              178,182     182,687 182,687 
2 02-12-00-6090 Overtime 8,564 4,280 2,709 5,000          5,000 5,000 
3 02-12-00-6091 Holiday Pay - - -              - 
4 02-12-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 7,317 6,656 7,185 7,739          9,532 9,532 
5 02-12-00-6098 Fica 11 12               - - 
6 02-12-00-6099 Medicare 2,708 2,692 2,750 2,729          2,794 2,794 
7 02-12-00-6100 PERS 53,846 60,040 63,220                40,300 41,291 41,291 
8 02-12-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 50,064 58,784 65,267                63,000 65,000 65,000 
9 02-12-00-6103 Leave Cash Outs 6,330 6,283 4,302 5,000          5,000 5,000 

10 02-12-00-6105 Insurance 20,012 17,255 10,461                22,000 17,500 17,500 
11 02-12-00-6106 Unemployment 4,662 1,295 -              - - 
12 02-12-02-6107 WWTP Land Acquisition - - -              - - 
13 02-12-00-6xxx PERS Relief 22,288 22,288 
14 02-12-00-6500 Rev. Bond Int. (HwyPkSewer) 27,349 26,074 26,495                -              - - 
15 02-12-00-6501 Interest Expense - ACWF Loans - - -              - - 
16 02-12-00-6600 Rev. Bond Princ.(HwyPkSewer) - - 36,965 36,965 36,965 
17 02-12-00-6601 Principal Payment - ACWE Loans - - -              - - 
18 02-12-00-7001 Publications & Advertising 748 1,439 260 3,000          2,500 2,500 
19 02-12-00-7003 Billing Service - 1,621 3,000          3,000 3,000 
20 02-12-00-7004 Audit/Accounting Fees 9,833 10,039 9,216 9,000          9,000 9,000 
21 02-12-00-7005 Legal Fees 7,705 4,131 3,487 4,000          5,000 5,000 
22 02-12-00-7006 Professional Services 1,512 181 9,645 2,500          2,500 2,500 
23 02-12-00-7007 Safety Equipment 166 1,490 1,894 2,500          2,500 2,500 
24 02-12-00-7008 Pretreatment Program 38,460 13,550 39,040                15,000 75,000 75,000 
25 02-12-00-7009 Equipment Outlay/Repair 16,285 63,849 10,734                20,000 16,400 16,400 
26 02-12-00-7010 Utility Truck Replacement - - -              - 
27 02-12-00-7011 System Supplies 9,588 6,998 9,675 10,000 15,000 15,000 
28 02-12-00-7012 I & I Evaluation & Repair - - -              - - 
29 02-12-00-7013 WWTP Chemicals 13,994 21,231 23,180                20,000 20,000 20,000 
30 02-12-00-7014 Vehicle Maintenance 2,455 1,325 2,575 4,000          4,000 4,000 
31 02-12-00-7015 Vehicle Gas & Oil 5,286 6,715 7,487 7,000          7,000 7,000 
32 02-12-00-7017 Heating Fuel - WWTP - - -              - 
33 02-12-00-7019 Laboratory 130,586               112,535              89,093                40,000 40,000 40,000 
34 02-12-00-7023 Laboratory - Industrial Pretreatment 75,000 - - 
35 02-12-00-7021 Liability Insurance 10,000 - -              - - 
36 02-12-00-7022 Office Supplies 436 187 2,490 5,000          2,500 2,500 
37 02-12-00-7029 Miscellaneous 2,755 4,466 2,616 3,000          3,000 3,000 
38 02-12-00-7039 Utitlity Postage 2,097 3,587 1,750 3,000          3,000 3,000 
39 02-12-00-7042 Bad Debt Expense 622 2,140 86 1,000          1,000 1,000 

 Sewer Expense

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

69



2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

 Sewer Expense

40 02-12-00-7045 Training 218 321 2,000          2,000 2,000 
41 02-10-00-7050 Credit Card User Fees 5,787 6,491 5,000          6,000 6,000 
42 02-12-00-7060 Accumulated Annual Leave (924) 2,308 (113) -              - - 
43 02-12-00-7092 Transfer Out - FRR 40,662 5,007 -              - 
44 02-12-00-7094 Transfer Out - Sewer Base 60,348 5,464 -              - 
45 02-12-00-7096 Transfer Out - FRR Industrial 79,548 7,204 -              - 
46 02-12-00-7097 Transfer Out - Capital Projects 2,144 -              - 
47 02-12-00-7300 Richardson Hwy. Dawson Crossing - - -              - 
48 02-12-00-7400 Deferred Maintenance Expense - 273 50,000 10,000 10,000 

49 02-12-00-7905 Energy Reserve 12,500 5,000 5,000 
50 02-12-00-8100 Sewer - Depreciation Expense 488,645               689,913              723,565              -              - 
51 02-12-04-7016 Electricity -WWTP 53,050 55,730 61,115                55,000 60,000 60,000 
52 02-12-04-7017 Heating Fuel -WWTP 10,303 15,931 15,087                10,000 11,000 11,000 
53 02-12-04-7018 Telephone - WWTP 3,227 3,575 2,612 3,000          3,500 3,500 
54 02-12-04-7020 Building Maintenance - WWTP 220 - 2,500          1,000 1,000 
55 02-12-05-7018 Telephone - SCADA 89 - 5,000          7,500 7,500 
56 02-12-06-7016 Electricity - Generator Storage 230 244 230 -              - 
57 02-12-06-7017 Heating Fuel - Generator Storage - - -              - 
58 02-12-70-7016 Electricity -Lift Station 1A - Holiday 4,772 5,009 3,496 5,500          5,000 5,000 
59 02-12-70-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 1A 600 94 534 1,000          1,000 1,000 
60 02-12-71-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 2A - Yukon 5,687 4,334 2,424 5,500          4,500 4,500 
61 02-12-71-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 2A - Yukon 94 579 1,000          1,000 1,000 
62 02-12-72-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 3A - Kitt 1,096 1,845 1,197 2,500          2,000 2,000 
63 02-12-72-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 3A - Kitt 94 583 1,000          1,000 1,000 
64 02-12-73-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 3B - 8th Ave 649 594 569 750             1,000 1,000 
65 02-12-73-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 3B 428 571 513 750             750 750 
66 02-12-74-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 3C - N Blanket 2,908 3,065 2,740 3,000          3,000 3,000 
67 02-12-74-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 3C 390 533 419 750             750 750 
68 02-12-75-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 4B - S Blanket 1,276 1,169 1,150 -              - 
69 02-12-75-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 4B 459 472 417 -              - 
70 02-12-76-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 4C - Black Bear 3,063 2,527 2,758 -              - 
71 02-12-76-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 4C 459 472 417 -              - 
72 02-12-77-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 4F - H&H 4,648 5,163 5,838 5,500          5,000 5,000 
73 02-12-77-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 4F 345 533 513 1,000          500 500 
74 02-12-78-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 5A - Finnel 1,671 683 722 750             1,000 1,000 
75 02-12-78-7018 Telephone - Lift  Station 5A 390 533 513 750             500 500 
76 02-12-79-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 5B - Hurst 1,268 1,458 966 1,200          1,500 1,500 
77 02-12-80-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 6A - Old Richardson 921 1,899 1,124 2,000          1,500 1,500 
78 02-12-80-7018 Telephone - Lift Station 6A - Old Richardson 94 534 1,500          500 500 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

70



2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

 Sewer Expense

79 02-12-81-7016 Electricity - Lift Station 6B - Tanana 803 770 836 1,000          1,000 1,000 
80 02-12-82-7016 Electricity - Lift Station Mockler 589 644 745 1,000          750 750 
81 02-12-83-7016 Electricity - Lift Station Stillmeyer 3,823 4,063 3,661 4,000          4,000 4,000 
82 02-12-83-7018 Telephone - Stillmeyer 421 434 417 500             250 250 
83 02-12-84-7016 Electricity - Utility Shop 3,500          3,500 3,500 
84 02-12-84-7017 Heating Fuel - Utility Shop 7,500          5,000 5,000 
85 02-12-84-7018 Telephone - Utility Shop 5,000          500 500 
86 02-12-10-7020 Building Maintenance -Utility Shop 5,000 5,000 
87 02-12-00-7031 Snow Removal 3,600 3,600 
88 02-12-00-7999 Move to Retained Earnings - -              2,383 2,383 

TOTAL 1,387,372            1,449,149           1,426,615          789,877     761,940 - -                 - 761,940 
761,940 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

71



Utility Department Sewer Breakout of Expenses

Actual Actual Actual Budgeted Proposed Approved
PERSONNEL COSTS 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2014

Salaries 186,593          177,617        185,096         178,182     182,687     182,687             
Salaries - OT 8,564              4,280             2,709             5,000         5,000         5,000                  
Holiday Pay -  -                 - -             -              -      
Pers 53,846            60,040          63,220           40,300      41,291       41,291               
PERS - State -  -                 - -            22,288       22,288               
Taxes 2,708              2,692             2,762              2,741        2,794         2,794  
Leave Cash Out 6,330              6,283             4,302              5,000        5,000         5,000  
Workman's Comp 7,317              6,656             7,185             7,739        9,532         9,532  
Unemployment -  4,662             1,295             -            -              -      
Accumulated annual leave -  FALSE -              -      
Health Insurance 50,064            58,784          65,267                  63,000             65,000 65,000               

TOTAL COST OF PERSONNEL 315,422          321,014        331,835         301,962     333,592     333,592              
      (percent of operating budget) 23% 22% 23% 38% 44% 44%

NON PERSONNEL COSTS 403,671          416,095        371,328         487,915    425,965     425,965             
      (percent of operating budget) 29% 29% 26% 62% 56% 56%

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 488,645          689,913        723,565                -            - -      

TRANSFERS OUT 180,559          19,819          - - 2,383         2,383   

TOTAL BUDGET 1,388,296      1,446,841     1,426,728            789,877          761,940     761,940             

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

72



2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Amended Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

REVENUES

1 27-12-00-5801 Miscellaneous Revenue 3,399         - - 
2 27-12-00-5805 FRR Industrial Sewer 79,548              67,714 71,749       64,610            63,511 63,511 
3 27-12-00-5825 FRR Sewer 40,662              58,993 57,607       63,720            63,511 63,511 
4 27-12-00-5830 Sewer Base 60,348              64,262 65,458       72,000            72,000 72,000 
5 27-12-00-5900 Transfer from Retained Earnings 300,000 300,000 

TOTAL 180,559           190,969               198,211    200,330          499,021 - - - 499,021 
499,021 

EXPENSES
6 27-12-00-7091 Transfer out Fund 3 (Capital Projects) 451,021 451,021 
7 27-12-00-7091 Transfer out Fund 55 (Utility Fleet) 48,000 48,000 
8 27-12-00-7092 Transfer Out - FRR 30,567 227,382 107,436 - 
9 27-12-00-7093 Transfer Out - Sewer Base 105,710 - 

10 27-10-00-7999 Transfer To Retained Earnings 200,330 - 
TOTAL 30,567 227,382 213,147 200,330 499,021 - - - 499,021 

499,021 

Utility Department Water Reserves (Fund 25) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 496,330               

Utility Fund Sewer Reserves (Fund 27)

ATTENTION:  This is a new fund set up in 2010 to account for the revenues that are received from the FRR and Sewer Base portions of the Water bills. 

NOTE - Expenses to this fund will be for the repair and replacement of water utility infrastructure.  These expenses will need to have the approval of council. 

NOTE - Expenses to this fund  will also be for the 10% pay back on the principal and the related interest on various ADEC water loans. 

NOTE - 2010 and 2011 Budget Actuals vary slightly from financials:  In the budget, amounts in the Transfer From accounts have been combined with the normal revenue accounts 
  27-10-00-5901 - has been combined with 27-12-00-5825 
  27-10-00-5902 - has been combined with 27-12-00-5830 
  27-12-00-5903 - has been combined with 27-12-00-5805 

This makes it easier to compare revenues year to year.  (in 2010 and early 2011, we were tranferring the revenue, each month from the Water Deparment.  In mid-2011, we set up the water/sewer billings to 
automatically post these revenues to this fund.) 

NOTE - In 2014, the City began transfering to Utility Fleet (Fund 55) at a 50% match rate from Fund 25 (Water reserves) and Fund 27 (Sewer reserves) 

NOTE - In 2014, we also began including the YTD account Balance with the published budget 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

73



2013 2014
Line Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 25 Water Reserve (Jet Vac) - - 
2 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 27 Sewer Reserve (Jet Vac) - - 
3 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 25 Water Reserve (Crane truck) - - 
4 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 27 Sewer Reserve (Crane truck) - - 
5 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 25 Water Reserve (operator truck) - 15,000.00           
6 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 27 Sewer Reserve (operator truck) - 15,000.00           
7 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 25 Water Reserve (Backhoe 1/3 EXP) - 33,000.00           
8 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Fund 27 Sewer Reserve (Backhoe 1/3 EXP) - 33,000.00           
9 55-00-00-5900 Transfer From Public Works (Backhoe 1/3 EXP) - 33,000.00           

- 
   TOTAL - 129,000              

EXPENSES
10 55-00-00-7901 Transfer to Retained Earnings (Utility Truck) - - 
11 55-00-00-7901 Transfer to General Fund Balance (Jet Vac) - - 
12 55-00-00-7901 Transfer to General Fund Balance (Crane Truck) - - 
13 55-00-00-7901 Purchase Utility Truck - 30,000.00           
14 55-00-00-7901 Purchase Backhoe - 99,000.00           
15 55-00-00-7901 Transfer to Retained Earnings - 

   TOTAL - 129,000.00        

Vehicle Fleet Fund (Fund 55)
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 - 

FLEET FUND - UTILITY - Fund 55

NOTE - This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by allocations from Fund 25 (Water Reserves) and Fund 27 
(Sewer Reserves). 

NOTE - Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

74



Project Expense Revenue Revenue Source
1 Water  Treatment Plant Engineering and Design 125,000 125,000 State MMG# 63321
2 Water  Treatment Plant Engineering and Design 375,000 375,000 USDA Planning Grant
3 Waste Water Treatment Plant Engineering and Design 125,000 125,000 State MMG# 63320
4 Waste Water Treatment Plant Engineering and Design 375,000 375,000 USDA Planning Grant
5 Well Rehabilitation and Adjustment Control Panel 147,500 147,500 State DCCED #09-DC-505

6 Techite Sewer Main and Manhole Rehabilitation1 2,515,000 2,515,000 State MMG# 63322

7 Inflow and Infiltration Reduction1 1,416,500 1,416,500 State ACWF# 633291

8 Waste Water Treatment Rehabilitation Project2

9 Waste Water Treatment Rehabilitation Phase 1 1,075,140 1,075,140 State MMG #63323
10 Waste Water Treatment Rehabilitation Phase 1 708,526 708,526 Pending MMG request
11 Emergency Generators 302,500 302,500 ACWF (waiting loan approval)

12 Utility Garage3 545,093 712,311 State MMG# 63319
13 233,611 534,096 City match

TOTAL GRANTS 7,877,477
Notes
1. Sewer lining project funded with MMG# 63322 and ACWF# 63291 should be completed and closed prior to the end of 2013.
2. Waste Water Treatment Project is expected to go to bid in 2014 . Required match will be drawn from capital reserves and capital income generated in 2014.
3. Utility Garage is essentially completed except for warranty issues resulting in $10,000 of retainage. The Utility has also withheld $13,000 in liquidated damages.

2014 UTILITY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 03

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

75



Building Department 

The Building Department is responsible for implementing the building codes adopted by the 
City. The City has traditionally adopted the same national building codes as the City of 
Fairbanks. In addition, the City has also traditionally adopted the amendments to the national 
codes adopted by the City of Fairbanks based upon recommendations by the Building Code 
Commission composed building professionals from the Interior. North Pole has done this for two 
reasons. First, having uniform building codes across the two cities makes it easier for developers 
and contractors who operate in both municipalities. Second, it is an expensive process and the 
City lacks the personnel to conduct an independent review of the national codes and generate 
code amendments.  

Building codes are “best practices” that provide builders, contractors, tradesman, and do-it 
yourselfers guidance concerning standards of construction. Building according to the codes also 
provides protection of property owners’ health and investment by helping to ensure that 
structures are safe, secure and energy efficient. To ensure that the City provides quality plan 
review and inspections of construction within the City, the Building Department contracts with 
professional engineers to provide these services. The City’s contract engineers are licensed 
professional engineers in the state of Alaska.  

As a service to contractors and developers, the Building Department proposes to use a portion of 
the accumulated revenues to develop an interactive website. Such a website would provide 
information on building codes and fees, a fee estimator and other tools to assist users. Because 
the Building Department is part of the larger City, the web development project would also entail 
updating the entire City’s website to provide a consistent image and an attractive “front door” to 
the City. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

76



Building Department (Fund 5)

2013 2014 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Approved Proposed Meeting Meeting Meeting Approved

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget #1 #2 #3 Budget

REVENUES
1 05-00-00-4001 Residential Plan Check Fee 3,526              7,946 1,000                 6,000                 5,000                 5,000 
2 05-00-00-4002 Residential Building Permit Fee 17,646            14,193                 2,388                 10,000               7,500                 7,500 
3 05-00-00-4003 Commercial Plan Check Fee 8,523              8,766 6,000                 10,000              10,000                
4 05-00-00-4004 Commerical Building Permit Fee 7,148              28,852                 10,000               12,000              12,000                
5 05-00-00-4005 Industrial Plan Check Fee 14,670            - 3,000                 3,000                 3,000 
6 05-00-00-4006 Industrial Building Permit Fee 23,255            - 5,000                 5,000                 5,000 
7 05-00-00-4007 Road Excavation Bond 5,000              - 5,000                 1,000                 1,000 
8 05-00-00-4008 Storm Water Plan Inspection Fee 720                 - 2,000                 1,000                 1,000 
9 05-00-00-4009 Storm Water Permit Fee - - 1,000                 1,000                 1,000 

10 05-40-00-4010 Special Inspection Fee - - - 
11 05-00-00-5900 Transfer In From Fund Balance - - 20,000               69,000              69,000                

TOTAL 80,488           59,757                 3,388                 68,000              114,500            - - - 114,500             
- 114,500              

EXPENSES
12 05-00-00-7000 Road Excavation Bond Return 5,500              - 5,000                 1,000                 1,000 
13 05-00-00-7001 Residential Plan Review 3,800              4,000 500 6,000                 6,000                 6,000 
14 05-00-00-7002 Residential Inspections 7,808              6,150 5,250                 10,000               10,500              10,500                
15 05-00-00-7003 Commercial Plan Review 5,700              9,298 697 6,000                 10,000              10,000                
16 05-00-00-7004 Commercial Inspections 2,774              25,113                 16,000               12,000              12,000                
17 05-00-00-7005 Industrial Plan Review 10,225            - 3,000                 8,000                 8,000 
18 05-00-00-7006 Industrial Inspections 18,281            1,437 5,000                 13,000              13,000                
19 05-00-00-7005 Institutional Plan Review - - 
20 05-00-00-7006 Institutional Inspections 17,000              17,000                
21 05-00-00-7007 Storm Water Plan Inspections 960                 - 2,000                 - - 
22 05-00-00-7008 Storm Water Site Inspections - - 1,000                 - - 
23 05-01-00-7001 Publications & Advertising - - 260 1,500                 2,000                 2,000 
24 05-01-00-7005 Legal Fees - 75 500 1,000                 1,000 
25 05-01-00-7006 Professional Services - - 1,350                 9,000                 25,000              25,000                
26 05-01-00-7022 Office Supplies/Software 1,030              1,607 422 1,000                 2,000                 2,000 
27 05-01-00-7029 Admin/Misc. Expenses - - 262 1,000                 2,500                 2,500 
28 05-01-00-7041 Bad Debt Expense - - - - 
29 05-01-00-7049 Training Classes/Manuals - - 819 1,000                 5,500                 5,500 

TOTAL 56,079           47,680                 9,561                 68,000              114,500            - - - 114,500             
114,500              

Building Department (Fund 5) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 118,071              

NOTE - A portion of the revenue from  Fund Balance Transfer In is from revenues recieved in prior years; 
but the correlating expenses are not projected until  2014.   

NOTE - A portion of Fund Balance Transfer In, equal to $23,500, has been budgeted to be used for 
updating the City's website to create a portal for online building permits and other updates.   

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

77



2013 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Approved Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 07-00-00-5000 Bed Tax Revenue -                 

-                 
-                 

EXPENSES
2 07-00-00-7999 City Retainage -                 
3 07-00-00-7000 Transfer to G Fund -                 
4 07-00-00-7003 NPEDC -                 
5 07-00-00-7005 NP Chamber of Commerce -                 
6 07-00-00-7006 FCVB -                 
7 07-00-00-7007 NP Christmas in Ice -                 

-                 

Gaming  (Fund 7) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 38 

Gaming (Fund 7)

NOTE - The City has a seperate bank account tied to this fund as required by state law.  

NOTE - This Fund has remained inactive for multiple years 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

78



2013 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 16-00-00-5900 Transfer in from fund balance 13,500.00     
2 16-00-00-4001 Revenue 16,512              24,897                - -                 
3 16-00-00-5100 Donations - Volunteer Dinner - 7,000 - -                 

TOTAL 16,512              31,897                - -                 - 

EXPENSES
4 16-00-00-7901 Transfer to General Fund 13,500.00     
5 16-00-00-7000 Expenses 12,490              9,285 19,665            -                 
6 16-00-00-7001 Volunteer Dinner 5,840 

TOTAL 12,490              15,126                19,665            -                 - 

Fire Department  (Fund 16) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 3,567 

FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND - Fund 16

NOTE - This fund is funded by Dept of Forestry use of city fire trucks and by special donations.  It is used by the Fire Department for expenses 
related to upgrading the fire department and their annual dinner. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

79



2013 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 18-00-00-4001 North Pole Community Ice Rink 12,660              50 -               

EXPENSES
2 18-00-00-7000 North Pole Community Ice Rink 2,170                - 190                -               

NP Ice Rink  (Fund 19) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 10,973                

NORTH POLE COMMUNITY ICE RINK FUND - Fund 19

NOTE - This fund is used for repairs/maintenance at the North Pole High School Hockey Rink  A community member makes the repairs and 
submits his invoices for reimbursement.  
Reimbursement is contingent on funds available - the city periodically receives donations for this purpose. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

80



2013 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 20-00-00-4001 North Pole Festival donations 32,265        10,648                9,650           - 7,500.00               
2 20-00-00-4002 City Funds 200              - 

TOTAL 32,265        10,648                9,850           - 7,500.00               

EXPENSES
3 20-00-00-7000 Expeditures 25,100        (65) 1,200           - - 
4 20-00-00-7001 Summerfest and 4,820          7,708 3,584           - 7,500.00               
5 20-00-00-7002 Other Festivals 386              1,281 1,616           - 

TOTAL 30,307        8,925 6,400           - 7,500.00               

North Pole Festival  (Fund 20) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 8,252 

NORTH POLE FESITVAL FUND - Fund 20

NOTE - This fund is used for expenses related to Summer Fest and the Mayor's Labor Day Picnic.  Revenues are received from community 
donations for this purpose. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

81



2013 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 21-00-00-4001 Revenues 6,137          60,384                6,382           - 

TOTAL

EXPENSES
2 21-00-00-7000 Expeditures 2,012          3,995 31,505        - 
3 21-00-00-7001 Vehicle Purchase 23,936        - 
4 21-00-00-7002 Equipment 22,547        - 

TOTAL 2,012          3,995 77,987        - - 

 
 

ABADE  (Fund 21) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 20,942                

ABADE - Fund 21

NOTE - This fund is for drug forfeiture monies that come to the City through the Federal Government.  These monies must be accounted 
for separately in their own fund.  There are very tight restrictions as to the use of these monies.  All expenses must be approved by the 
federal department of justice. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

82



2013 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Approved Propsed

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 22-00-00-4001 Grant Revenue 144,256      91,357                75,989        - 76,799.74       
2 22-00-00-4165 PERS Relief 3,144          4,256 3,279          - 3,456.00         
3 TOTAL 147,400      95,613                79,269        - 80,255.74       

-              

EXPENSES
4 22-00-00-6000 Salaries 49,168        47,043                37,130        - 44,928.00       
5 22-00-00-6022 Training Overtime 1,192 -              - 
6 22-00-00-6090 Overtime 6,092          2,735 2,558          - 
7 22-00-00-6091 Holiday Pay 898              1,047 433             - 
8 22-00-00-6095 Grant Overtime - -              - 
9 22-00-00-6095 Grant Overtime -              - 

10 22-00-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 2,357          2,225 2,154          - 2,008.28         
11 22-00-00-6099 Medicare 804              744 682             - 651.46            
12 22-00-00-6100 PERS 15,615        15,735                12,407        - 9,857.16         
13 22-00-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 16,644        19,649                23,904        - 19,354.84       
14 22-00-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 1,387 -              - 
15 22-00-00-6105 Insurance 679              -              - 
16 22-00-00-7000 Expenditures 55,143        3,855 -              - 

20-00-00-6100 Pers Relief 3,456.00         
TOTAL 147,400      95,613                79,269        - 80,255.74       

AHSO TRAFFIC OFFICER - Fund 22

NOTE -  In the past, expenses and revenues, for the AHSO Traffic Officer, were budgeted in the General Fund even though the actual 
revenues and expenses were booked to Fund 22.  Starting in 2011, the City of North Pole will begin budgeting all revenues and expenses 
from this program in Fund 22. 

NOTE - The City has received a state grant for 100% funding of this position through September 30, 2014.  

NOTE - The AHSO Grant is a 90% match for the salary of the officer. 

NOTE - The AHSO Grant is expected to lower the match in future years.   It is expected that if the Grant is not awarded this position will 
be paid for through the General Fund.  

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

83



2013 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 23-00-00-4001 Grant Revenue 69,819         40,353                 93,194        60,787             50,000.00 
2 23-00-00-4165 PERS Relief 2,818           3,263 6,529           - 

TOTAL 72,637        43,616                 99,723        60,787             50,000.00 
-               - 

EXPENSES
3 23-00-00-6022 Training Overtime - -               - 
4 23-00-00-6000 Salaries 38,010         20,460                 44,583        42,730             29,962.50 
5 23-00-00-6022 Training Overtime 38                - 
6 23-00-00-6090 Overtime 11,459         1,839 2,407           2,000               
7 23-00-00-6091 Holiday Pay 53                 517 567              - 
8 23-00-00-6095 Grant Overtime - 534              - 
9 23-00-00-6097 Workers Comp. Ins. 2,049           1,070 2,451           1,899               1,339.33 

10 23-00-00-6099 Medicare 743              354 784              649 434.46 
11 23-00-00-6100 PERS 13,701         12,064                 18,759        9,841               6,564.78 
12 23-00-00-6102 Health & Disability Insurance 4,503           7,312 9,111           3,669               11,698.93 
13 23-00-00-6103 Leave Cash Out 2,118           - -               - 
14 23-00-00-7000 Expenditures - -               - 

-               - 
TOTAL 72,637        43,616                 79,233        60,788             50,000.00 

BYRNE/JAG OFFICER - Fund 23

NOTE - Note:  In the past, expenses and revenues, for the JAG Officer, were budgeted in the General Fund even though the actual revenues and 
expenses were booked to Fund 23.  Starting in 2011, the City of North Pole will begin budgeting all revenues and expenses for this program in Fund 
23. 

NOTE - The City recieves a State grant that covers part of the cost of a JAG Police Officer.  We have recieved a percentage of the cost of the position 
in the past, however; in 2014, we have been awarded a set dollar amount.   

NOTE - This grant is for the term of July 1, 2013 through June 30th, 2014.  It is assumed that the City will recieve continued grant support from the 
State, however; if not, the City will need to cover the cost of this position from the General Fund.   

NOTE -  It should be noted that this position is a normal, full-time, position within the Police Department, it was created under the General fund. 
The JAG grant was received at a later time to help offset the costs of this officer.  

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

84



2013 2014
Line 2010 2011 2012 Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 24-00-00-5900 Transfer in from Fund Balance 17,632   
2 24-00-00-4001 State Forfeiture Revenue -            1,356            4,341      -             

TOTAL 17,632  

EXPENSES
3 24-00-00-7000 Expenses -                927         
4 24-00-00-7091 Transfer to General Fund 17,632   

TOTAL 17,632   

State Forfeitures  (Fund 24) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 21,875                 

STATE FORFEITURES  FUND - Fund 24

NOTE - This Fund account is for assets recieved in State of Alaska forfeitures (Police) 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

85



Project Name Grant # Amount Funding Source
Fire Equipment Upgrades 11 DC 314 95,000.00               DCCED
FNSB Beautification na 10,000.00               Borough
Exercise Trail na Donations
Police Radios & Equipment 12SHSP-2102-SS-00127 128,363.00             Homeland Security
Ladder Truck 14 DC 109 980,000.00             DCCED
Ambulance 14 DC 110 125,000.00             DCCED
Pass Through to NPEDC - Sled Dog Races 14 DC 111 80,000.00               DCCED
North Pole Archival System 14 DC 112 150,000.00             DCCED
Police Station - Heating & Cooling Systems 14 DC 113 75,000.00               DCCED
Alaska Shield Exercise EMW-2013-SS-00098 60,000.00               Homeland Security

FUND 31 - GENERAL GOVERNMENT PROJECTS

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

86



Sister City (Fund 32)

2013 2014
Line 2012 Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 32-00-00-5001 Travel to Japan -               

TOTAL 

EXPENSES
2 -               

-               
   TOTAL -               - 

Sister City  (Fund 32) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 300 

NOTE - This fund was created in 2012 to account for expenses/donations for Sister City travel and hosting. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

87



2013 2014
Line 2012 Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Actual Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 33-00-00-4001 IRS Forfeitures 6,417 -               

Total 

EXPENSES
2 -               

-               

   TOTAL -                -               - 

IRS Forfeitures  (Fund 33) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 6,416 

IRS FORFEITURES - Fund 33

NOTE - This fund was created in 2012 to account for forfeitures from IRS case work. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

88



2013 2014
Line 2012 Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Actuals Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 36-00-00-4024 Administration Fees -               36,000 
2 36-00-00-4025 Transfer to General Fund -               
3 36-00-00-5900 Transfer from Fund Balance

   TOTAL -               36,000 

EXPENSES
4 36-00-00-7105 Hearing Fees -               
5 36-00-00-7106 Attorney Fees -               
6 36-00-00-7107 Towing Fees -               
7 36-00-00-7108 Bad Debt -               
8 36-00-00-7109 Refund to Vehicle Owner -               
9 36-00-00-7092 Transfer to General fund 36,000 

10 36-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 
   TOTAL -               36,000 

Impound  (Fund 36) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 16,118 

IMPOUND LOT FUND - FUND 36

NOTE - This fund was created in 2012, by ordinance, to collect impound lot fees.  It was the intention to build funds in 
order for the City to have a impound lot of our own for siezures.   Currently, in 2013, impound lot fees 
are budgeted in the general  fund.  At year end, we will do a transfer, from the Impound Lot Fund to the General Fund for 
all fees received, minus expenses. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

89



2013 2014
Line Approved Proposed 

# Account Number Account Title Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 50-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 13,975        13,975 
2 -               
3    TOTAL 13,975        13,975 

EXPENSES
4 50-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 13,975        13,975 
5 -               
6 -               
7    TOTAL 13,975        13,975 

Vehicle Fleet Fund Fire  (Fund 50) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 - 

 FLEET FUND - FIRE - Fund 50

NOTE - Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been collected. 

NOTE - This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of Property Tax. 

NOTE - Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

90



2013 2014
Line Approved Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 51-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 13,975        13,975 
2 -               
3    TOTAL 13,975        13,975 

EXPENSES
7 51-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 13,975        13,975 
8 -               
9 -               

10    TOTAL 13,975        13,975 

Vehicle Fleet Fund Police  (Fund 51) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 - 

 FLEET FUND - POLICE - Fund 51

NOTE - Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been collected. 

NOTE - This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of Property Tax 

NOTE - Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

91



2013 2014
Line Approved Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 52-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 5,375          5,375 
2 -               
3    TOTAL 5,375          5,375 

EXPENSES
4 52-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 5,375          5,375 
5 -               
6 -               
7    TOTAL 5,375          5,375 

Vehicle Fleet Fund Admin  (Fund 52) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 - 

VEHICLE FLEET FUND - ADMIN - Fund 52

NOTE - Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been collected. 

NOTE - This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of Property Tax. 

NOTE - Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

92



2013 2014
Line Approved Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 53-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 9,675           9,675 
2 -               
3    TOTAL 9,675           9,675 

EXPENSES
4 53-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 9,675           9,675 
5 -               
6 -               
7    TOTAL 9,675           9,675 

Vehicle Fleet Fund Public Works  (Fund 53) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 - 

VEHICLE FLEET FUND - PUBLIC WORKS - Fund 53

NOTE - Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been collected. 

NOTE - This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of Property Tax. 

NOTE - Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

93



2013 2014
Line Approved Proposed

# Account Number Account Title Budget Budget

REVENUES
1 54-00-00-5900 Transfer From General Fund 43,000             43,000                
2 - 
3    TOTAL 43,000             43,000                

EXPENSES
4 54-00-00-7901 Transfer to Fund Balance 43,000             43,000                
5 - 
6 - 
7    TOTAL 43,000             43,000                

Capital Projects General Government Reserves  (Fund 54) 
Date Fund Balance

Account Balance as of 10/24/2013 - 

CAPITAL PROJECTS - GENERAL GOVERNMENT RESERVES - Fund 54

NOTE - Budgeted transfers into this fund will be done at year end, once all property tax has been 
collected.   

NOTE - This fund was created in 2013, by Ordinance 13-11, and is funded by a percentage of 
Property Tax. 

NOTE - Monies from this Fund may only be spent by budget approval of the Council. 

City of North Pole
2014 Proposed Budget

94



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Adopted: August 19, 2013 

 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 5 
RESOLUTION 13- 13 6 

 7 
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE SEWER LIFT STATION 8 

REHABILITATION PROJECT PHASE 3 AS THE CITY OF NORTH POLE’S 9 
PRIORITY CAPITAL PROJECT FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2014 10 

 11 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole created its water and sewer utility system to provide 12 
residents with the sanitation, protection and convenience afforded by a municipal water 13 
and sewer utility system and to promote an improved community environment; and 14 
 15 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole desires to receive funding from the State of Alaska, 16 
Federal Government and other external funding sources for local Utility projects; and 17 
 18 
WHEREAS, the priority Utility Department capital project for calendar year 2014 is the 19 
Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation Project Phase 3. 20 
 21 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Pole City Council endorses as 22 
the City of North Pole’s calendar year 2014 priority capital project the Sewer Lift Station 23 
Rehabilitation Project Phase 3. 24 
 25 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole 26 
City Council this 19th day of August, 2013. 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
      ___________________________________ 31 
       Bryce Ward, Mayor 32 
 33 
ATTEST: 34 
 35 
 36 
______________________________ 37 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 38 
North Pole City Clerk 39 
 40 
 41 
PASSED/FAILED 42 
Yes: 43 
No: 44 
Absent: 45 

City of North Pole 
2014 Proposed Budget

95



City of North Pole 
2014 Proposed Budget

96



City of North Pole 
2014 Proposed Budget

97



Submitted by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Approved:  November 4, 2013 

City of North Pole 

Resolution 13-17 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

RESOLUTION 13-17 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL RESCHEDULING 

THE NOVEMBER 18, 2013 COUNCIL MEETING TO NOVEMBER 25, 2013 

DUE TO THE AML CONFERENCE IN ANCHORAGE, ALASKA 

 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole holds their regular City Council meetings on the first 

and third Monday of each month; and 

 

WHEREAS, the North Pole Municipal Code states in section 2.12.030 “Regular Council 

meetings shall be scheduled for the first and third Mondays of each month unless 

otherwise posted”; and 

 

WHEREAS, the majority of the North Pole City Council will be attending the Alaska 

Municipal League Annual Conference from November 18 – 22, 2013 to receive training 

on issues facing municipal leaders and to have networking opportunities with other 

communities and municipal officials and; and 

 

WHEREAS, three of our council members will be attending the “Newly Elected 

Officials” seminar which is one of Alaska’s most highly regarded training programs for 

local leaders; and   

 

WHEREAS, there will not be a quorum to conduct the business of the City on November 

18, 2013 and so the meeting will be rescheduled due to the AML Conference and will 

take place on Monday, November 25, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the North Pole City Council does 

hereby proclaim that the meeting of November 18, 2013 will be rescheduled for Monday, 

November 25, 2013 at 7:00 p.m.  

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on the 4
th

 day of November, 2013. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Kathryn Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 


	AG-11-04-13
	Min-10-21-13
	Tuition Reimbursement for Officer Emily Gibson
	Appeal of water bill for Sept & Oct 2014 by James Vogel
	Accptance of AHSO Grant in amount of $119,326.39
	Awared design services for heating & cooling system in NPPD to PDC Inc
	Award of Bi-directional Amplifier & Dist Antenna bid to Procomm
	NPPD Bi-dirctional amplifier & Dist Antenna System bid
	Ord 13-14 2014 Budget Ordinance Page
	2014 Annual CNP Budget
	2014 ANNUAL BUDGET COVER PAGE
	CNP Organizational Chart 2013
	2014 Dept Directors
	FNSB GIS Map
	NPCity Government Brochure 2014
	North Pole History
	Sales Tax & Mil Rate History
	Sheet1

	INVESTMENTS ltr
	loan DEC
	Stillmeyer

	loan Highway park
	Stillmeyer

	Loan highway sewer
	Stillmeyer

	loan stillmeyer
	Stillmeyer

	Budget CVR
	Cover Sheet

	General Fund Description
	General Fund Revenue
	Revenue

	Professional Services narrative
	Professional Services Expenditures
	Professional Services 

	City Clerk Narrative
	HR Summary
	Administration Expenditures
	Admin. Expenditures

	Administration BOR
	Admin. Expenditures

	Org Chart-Fire Department
	NPFD Narrative
	Fire Department Expense
	Fire Department

	Fire BOE
	Fire Department

	NPPD Narrative & Statistics
	Police Expenditures
	Police Department

	Police BOE
	Police Department

	Public Works 2014 budget narrative
	Public Works Expenditures
	Public Works

	Public Works BOE
	Public Works

	2014 Utility budget narrative
	Water Sewer Cover page
	W S Enterprise Fund

	Sewer Revenue
	Sewer Department Revenue

	Sewer Expenditures
	Sewer Dept. Expenditures

	Sewer BOE
	Sewer Dept. Expenditures

	Sewer Reserves
	Sewer Reserves

	Water Revenue
	Water Department Revenue

	Water Expenditures
	Water Dept. Expenditures

	Water BOE
	Water Dept. Expenditures

	Water Reserve
	Water Reserves

	VF Utility 55
	VFF UT

	Copy of Capital Projects Fund 2014 (10-25-13)
	Sheet1

	Gaming fund 7
	Gaming Fund

	Fire Fund 16
	Fire

	Ice Rink fund 19
	NP Community Ice Rink

	Festival fund 20
	NP Festival Fund

	Abade 21
	Abade

	AHSO 22
	AHSO

	JAG 23
	JAG

	State forfieture 24
	State Forfeitures

	Cap Projects Grants Fund 31
	Sheet1

	Sister city 32
	Sister City

	IRS 33
	IRS Forfeitures

	Impound 36
	Impound Lot

	CP GG 54
	Sheet6

	VF Fire 50
	VFF FIRE

	VF Police 51
	VFF POLICE

	VF admin 52
	VFF ADMIN

	VF PW 53
	VFF PW

	Res 13-15 2014 Capital Projects Priority for CNP
	Res 13-15 2014 Capital Projects Priority for CNP
	Res 13-13 Utility Capital priority for 2014
	Untitled
	Breakout of Personnel and operating exp (NEW).pdf
	Break Out of Op Costs

	Expense Variance (New).pdf
	Variances


	Res 13-17 Rescheduling Nov 18th Council Meeting to Nov 25th



